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Mission

Providing a safe, reliable, cordial, and high-quality transport service is more than just our mission, it is our duty and
the reason for our existence.

Vision

We aim to develop TRTC into a first-class corporation that serves as an international leader in the field of mass
transit.

Management Concept

We pledge that our customers come first and we believe in quality above all. TRTC strives to meet our passengers'
every need by providing outstanding, innovative services.

Creating Value

To live up to our motto that our customers come first, TRTC not only provides a safe, reliable, comfortable, and
prompt metro service, but also endeavors to create value for our customers through innovation. We also do our
utmost to decrease operating costs and diversify our operations in order to stabilize profits and ensure sustainable
development. While such policies serve to build a positive image, they also create enterprise value.
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Over the years since the Taiwan Rapid Transit Corporation (TRTC)
first began operations with one metro line in 1996, the Taipei
Metro transportation network has expanded to a total of eight
lines covering 75.8 kilometers. At the end of 2008, the Nangang
Eastern Extension became operational with the opening of
Nangang Station. The Neihu Line will begin transporting
passengers in 2009 and the Nangang Line will extend further
to the Taipei Nangang Exhibition Center Station the following
year. After this, the Luzhou Line and the Taipei City section of the
Xinzhuang Line will also begin transporting passengers, providing
even more convenient transport options and promoting
prosperity in surrounding areas. The opening of the Neihu Line in
June 2009 will mark the completion of Phase One of the Taipei
Metro Network, which will then have a total length of 90.5
kilometers. After the completion of Phase Two in 2015, the total
track length will exceed 150 kilometers and we estimate that
over half of Taipei area residents will commute via mass transit,
including buses and metro. Taipei will become a truly modern
metropolis with mass transit serving as the backbone of the city's
transportation system.

To more efficiently manage the 2009 system expansion, TRTC
drafted a company restructuring plan that took into account
its future operational scope and human resource development
needs. The plan was passed at the board of directors meeting
held on May 23, 2007. Then, on September 27, 2007, the Taipei
City Government approved the measure and passed it along for
review by the Ministry of Transportation and Communications,
which in turn gave its approval on October 9, 2007. As of March
4, 2008, the company's internal structure was changed to
consist of 14 divisions and four offices, enabling TRTC to more
effectively utilize company resources, increase organizational
efficiency, and achieve sustainable development.

As global warming has come to the fore as a significant concern
in recent years, researchers around the world are seeking to
develop methods to reduce carbon dioxide emissions. According
to a report published by the Research Center for Environmental
Changes at Taiwan's Academia Sinica, the amount of carbon
dioxide released per person per year in Taiwan ballooned
from 5.73 tons in 1990 to 11.26 tons in 2006, a true cause for
concern. Due to recent increases in the cost of crude oil and
consumer goods, larger numbers of people are choosing to
commute by motorcycle and scooter, resulting in a corresponding
rise in air pollution, traffic congestion, and safety issues. To
mitigate the impact of this phenomenon, TRTC has followed
the city and central governments' calls for energy conservation
by providing a 25% discount on Metro fares for users of the
EasyCard. This will help reduce transportation costs for Taipei
residents and encourage drivers and motorcycle riders to change
their deep-set habits and switch to a more environmentally-
friendly alternative. By increasing the mass transit utilization
rate, TRTC can help reduce energy consumption and pollutant
emission. Also, in coordination with the Taipei City Government
plan to enhance the implementation of energy conservation
measures at affiliated organizations and schools, TRTC drafted
the Metro System Internal Energy Conservation and CO,
Reduction Plan to shoulder the Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) we have as providers of mass transit services. With the
support and hard work of our nearly 4,000 employees, TRTC is
committed to reducing our environmental impact and fulfilling
our responsibilities to the community we serve.
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Taipei Metro has already become an indispensable part of
city residents' daily commute, but it is not just a means of
transportation. The rapid transit system has provided passengers
access to more of the city and surrounding areas and thoroughly
changed their lives. We seek to continuously improve our service
quality by offering a variety of cultural and recreational activities,
creating a dynamic new Metro culture. Life in Taipei can be hectic
and fast-paced, so TRTC wants to give area residents the chance
to take things a little slower. In 2007, the Taipei City Government
enlisted TRTC to operate the Maokong Gondola. This year, the
city once again called upon our expertise and years of experience
operating both our transportation and affiliated businesses,
asking TRTC to take over operations of the Taipei Arena
beginning on September 1, 2008. By actively improving facilities,
upgrading their capabilities, and standardizing management
procedures, TRTC raised overall service quality at Taipei Arena,
which now provides a more diverse range of services. With TRTC
at the helm, the public can now enjoy a safe, comfortable, high-
quality international performance venue.

Taipei Metro has been proudly serving passengers for over
13 years. Over that period, we have continuously challenged
ourselves to improve service quality and have achieved significant
breakthroughs in this area. Our spirit of service and quality goes
on as we strive to provide the public with even more refined
and outstanding service. We hope to enrich the lives of Greater
Taipei residents by not just providing transportation services, but
increasing overall quality of life and upgrading Taipei to a true
world city.

Richard C.L. Chen

Messages from Company Heads
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Since our first trains began carrying passengers in 1996, TRTC
has provided clean, fast, and convenient rapid transit services.
Taipei Metro has not only improved the city's notoriously
congested street traffic, but has also created a rapid and
convenient transport web that connects the Metro with buses
and other means of transportation. Effectively alleviating the
traffic situation in the Greater Taipei area, this transportation
network has also spurred comprehensive economic development
throughout the city and made Taipei one of the easiest cities
in Asia to navigate. On February 22, 2008, Taipei Metro
ridership surpassed 3 billion trips. In less than a decade, our
ridership increased 30-fold from the 100 million trips reached
on December 22, 1998. On August 16, 2005, ridership reached
2 billion. We owe all of this success to the public's support of
TRTC's mass transit services.

Taipei Metro's chief duty is to provide a safe, reliable
transportation environment. According to data from London
Imperial College's Railway and Transport Strategy Centre (RTSC),
Taipei Metro has ranked number one in reliability among the
26 members of the Nova/CoMET consortiums from 2004 to
2007. Our first place ranking four years running affirms that
Taipei Metro has already reached a world-class level of reliability.
Studying the recent spate of fires and terrorist attacks in subway
systems, untrained personnel were a major factor contributing
to the high number of injuries and deaths. In 2008, TRTC
completed its Interactive Emergency Evacuation Exhibition
Center to prevent such problems. Open to the public in June
2008, the center allows visitors to get first-hand experience with
emergency equipment that they may not come in contact with
or are not allowed to touch under normal circumstances. The
understanding gained through these hands-on activities can help
save lives and reduce injuries in the event of a real emergency.

To better ensure passenger safety, TRTC has implemented a
variety of system improvements such as installation of the Track
Intrusion Detection System and other facilities on the high-
capacity lines to prevent people and articles from falling through
the gap between train and platform. In 2008, TRTC began the
initial phase of testing of its train cabin monitoring system, while
additional digital CCTV recording units were added to station
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monitoring systems. In addition, the line signaling computer
system on the high-capacity lines was replaced. Improvements
were made to the accuracy of train arrival information and
several disaster drills were held. These measures helped to create
a safer and more comfortable mass transit environment, allowing
our passengers to ride Taipei Metro without worry.

To create an enjoyable travel experience for our customers, Taipei
Metro has developed a wide variety of thoughtful new services.
Even more stations now allow bicycle access to the Metro on
weekends and at a reduced price, enabling larger numbers of
passengers to enjoy this healthy leisure activity. To provide better
service for our early morning and later evening passengers,
such as students and office workers, Taipei Metro has reduced
headway during both time periods. We have begun remodeling
stations on the Muzha Line to improve the environment for
passengers waiting for their trains. We have also upgraded
station toilet facilities. The 2008 Taipei Metro Passenger
Satisfaction Survey showed that 95% of customers were satisfied
with their overall experience, underlining our passengers' support
for Taipei Metro.

The Taipei City Government commissioned TRTC to operate
the Taipei Arena beginning on September 1, 2008. As of
December 31, the utilization rate for the arena exceeded 81%
and these events were attended by 208,990 people. Under city
government policy, first priority at the arena is given to public
service events (including sporting events). Such events made up
32% of the total utilization, underlining the significant role that
the Taipei Arena plays in the lives of Taipei's citizens. The ice rink
located in the Arena's sub-hall attracted a total of 29,817 skaters.
Overall operational results were quite promising, making Taipei
Arena more important to city residents and meeting a variety of
different needs.

In the future, we will continue to upgrade our service quality
and improve our facilities to better meet our customers' needs.
Actively taking part in different international rapid transit and
related associations and establishing channels to study the art of
benchmarking will enable TRTC to provide ever better services.
In the process, we can also improve the quality of life for Taipei's
citizens and make Taipei a healthier, more convenient city.

Huel-Sheng Tsay

14»4-%5 Fioy
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| EAEEEIRGERFEIE Capitalization and Ownership Structure

ST Taipei City Government 6,898,247,860 73.75%

X2 5@EB Ministry of Transportation and Communications 1,603,560,000 17.14%

SLERIAT Taipei County Government 818,483,750

55558 T MBS DB PR /23 Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd 33,407,500

KL EPRE 53R 1T Mega Bank Corporation 133,630

S{EE&EE$R1T Taiwan Cooperative Bank 133,630

SV EFRRGZEER1T Taipei Fubon Bank 133,630

&5t Total 9,354,100,000

EXR4EHEE Capitalization Structure

0.36%
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BEEE Board of Directors
EFEERGIT The Introduction of the Board of Directors

FR#& 52 Richard C. L. Chen

BREC (SR BTRIsSS)
William W.Z Chen (Deputy Mayor, Taipei County Government)

BRI E (hEA2EBSRRR)
Wu-Cheng Chen (Dean, School of Management, Chung Hua University)

BREZR (BNARESEBRRITHE)
Chai-Lai Chen (Professor of Cheng Kung University )

BIER REpeEIan)
Hsi—Tung Yang (Director, Department of General Affairs, Ministry of Transportation and Communications)

FiE (EHBNEEEENE)
Huel Wang (Technical Superintendent, Taipei City Police Department)

S (ERH TN ERATEER)
Fong-Sheng Wu (Chairman, Tang Eng Iron Works Co., Ltd.)

FIRE (REEHEREHTUR)

Ming—Huey Li (Executive Secretary, Committee of Administrative Laws & Regulations, Ministry of Transportation and Communications)

BB (StmBEHEREEEE)
Emile C.J. Sheng (Chairperson of RDEC, Taipei City Government)

S (EhREEEIRRRRE)
Chi-Te Chang (Commissioner of Department of Rapid Transit Systems)

EBIT (BB EREEAES)
Ching-Yuan Yeh (Chairperson of Law and Regulation Commission, Taipei City Government)

PR (BB ERRBR)
Jeng—long Chen (Vice Commissioner, Department of Transportation, Taipei City Government)

ENES (BItAREERDERATRIEE)
Huel-Sheng Tsay (President of Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation)

e,

BV R (BIEARBERIDBRATFHEIETIZEM)
Li-Chen Yeh (Engineer, Business Division, Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation Union)

R FHH (EHREEERER)
Hsiu-Chu Liang (Deputy Director, Department of Budget, Accounting and Statistics, Taipei City Government)

AR (REBHEEEFIEE)
Chia-Chih Wu (Expert Committee, Department of Statistics, Ministry of Transportation and Communications)

HER (SIHRENEER)
Mitchell Hung (Secretary General, Taipei County Government)

BRI (SAHREATEES)
Yieng-Chen Han (Commissioner of Personnel Department , Taipei City Government)

TR (BUHREYREEER)
Yung—Chen Li (Vice Commissioner, Department of Finance, Taipei City Government)
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Structure and Organization

Over the past 10 years, the length of track in operation more than doubled, from 34 kilometers to a total of 75.8 kilometers. Average daily
ridership rose from 160,000 in 1998 to 1.23 million this year, a more than seven-fold increase. To keep up with company growth, reduce
the overly broad range of responsibilities for some departments, and improve departmental efficiency, TRTC decided to restructure its
internal organization. After reviewing department divisions at state-run enterprises such as Taiwan Power Co. and CPC Corp., TRTC
reorganized itself into 14 divisions and 4 offices as of March 4, 2008.




ATI¥ER Workforce Overview

1. BETRAH

Total Number of Employees : 3,835 A
2. BT I1TRIHET

Gender : 55 Men 3,166 A » & Female 669 A
3. BT FEmifet

Average Age : F1334.905%

4. ETHBEEEMET Education Statistics
B+t Doctorate : 3A » lBTMaster : 414 A » XZBachelor : 1,692\ -
=R} Vocational School : 1,267 A » S High School : 446 A -
E¥fAJunior High School : 13 A ©
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Taipei Metro began operations on March 28, 1996 and reached a
total accumulated ridership of 3 billion trips on February 22, 2008.
In order to celebrate this exceptional milestone, TRTC held a Thank
You Concert and prize drawing at Danshui Station on March 8,
2008.
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Beginning on March 1, 2008, fees for bringing a bicycle onto
the Taipei Metro on weekends and holidays were reduced from
NT$100 to NT$80. Also, 12 stations along the Bangiao, Nangang,
and Tucheng Lines began welcoming bicycles on weekends.
With the 15 stations that previously allowed passengers to bring
bicycles, the total has now reached 27 stations.

€0°800¢

B 2007 F9RB 9BE2008F 2 B 29 BHIE - BUERET TH#C
EREE 3,083,188 THF » (KR EPFERERE THACERE »
2008 F 3 B 14 BTl T EEEEE@BBREE -

From September 9, 2007 to February 29, 2008, Taipei Metro
accumulated 3,083,188 operating hours without accident
or incident. TRTC then sent in an application to certify this
achievement, which was approved by Council of Labor Affairs on
March 14, 2008.
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With oil prices hovering at record highs, TRTC aimed to attract
motorcycle and automobile commuters to use rapid transit instead
and thank those who already ride Taipei Metro by discounting
ticket prices for EasyCard users by 25% from June 1 to August 31,
2008. Discounts for Senior, Charity, and Escort EasyCards were
increased from 60% to 62.5% over the same period.
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TRTC established the Interactive Emergency Evacuation Exhibition
Center in the company's Beitou Resort Training Center, which was
officially opened to the public on June 3, 2008. Applicants can
experience using station and tunnel emergency equipment first-
hand, familiarizing the public with safety equipment used in the
Taipei Metro system.
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Together with Cathay United Bank and Hit FM Broadcasting
Network, TRTC held its Fourth Taipei Metro Street Dance
Competition, which kicked off on July 26, 2008 with a total of
150 teams signed up to participate. Following the preliminary and
semi-final competitions, the finals were held on August 18, 2008
to the delight of all the young people in attendance.
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On September 1, 2008, TRTC and the Taipei City Government
signed a contract commissioning TRTC to operate the Taipei Arena
from that date through December 31, 2010.
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Together with Voice of Taipei and Hit FM Broadcasting Network,
TRTC held the fourth Metro Love and Caring — Care for the Elderly
Concert on October 3, 2008 in the plaza outside Exit 1 of the
Shilin Station.
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According to 2007 data from the Railway and Transport Strategy
Centre (RTSC) at Imperial College London's Nova/CoMET
consortiums, Taipei Metro once again topped the 26 consortium
members in system reliability. From 2004 to 2007, Taipei Metro
has held on to the top spot, showing that we rank among the best
rapid transit systems in the world.
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On October 22, 2008, the Industrial Development Bureau, Ministry
of Economic Affairs, as part of the National Quality Control
Circle Competition, awarded TRTC their Gold Tower Award for
maintenance related improvements and the bronze for increases in
the quantity of administrative proposals.
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Heart of the Metro As part of the Heart of the Metro movement, TRTC promoted a
Movement - Metro series of activities beginning on October 22, 2008, using comic
Etiquette strips and 30-second videos to educate passengers on escalator
safety, train etiquette, elevator courtesy, and rules against eating
and drinking in stations.
= BE - Z - BEiE— 2008 & 11 B 8 B » EEEXKILNEIBEMW [BE - B - B
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Metro Love & Caring Youth ~ On November 8, 2008, TRTC held the Metro Love & Caring Youth
Concert Concert at the Danshui Station plaza. Pop stars sang and danced
on stage, calling on youth to observe Metro etiquette, and help to
create a clean travel environment.
g SAIEELH = 4L4ED 2008 12 B 6 BE 12 B 278 > St EHOSEE 5 5
_8 SEBRENEH » HEIIBTYRE » BFEEEEFENZER
~ 2008 Exit Music Festival REEXFIEERRBENNZENRLE B 6 HAEREZ
SHE -
From December 6 through December 27, 2008, TRTC sponsored
the Exit Music Festival, which featured several concerts held at
MRT stations. We invited renowned world musician Matthew Lien
along with local artists to put on a total of six different concerts,
each with their own theme.
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N gART !\]I(angang Station: The Nangang Station, on the Nangang Extension, opened to great
pen tor Business fanfare on December 25, 2008 at a ceremony held to launch this
extension to the network.
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>  Breaking the Single Day MMBIEEHS -

Ridership Record

In coordination with celebrations held across the Taipei area, Taipei
Metro ran all night over New Year's Eve and New Year's Day. In
the 24-hour period that lasted until 6:00 am on January 1, 2009, a
record breaking 1,950,822 trips rode the Metro.
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The eight Taipei Metro lines operational in 2008 include the Muzha, Danshui, Xindian, Zhonghe, Nangang, Xiaonanmen, Bangiao,
and Tucheng Lines. The network spans a total of 75.8 kilometers (total track constructed measures 78.1 kilometers) with 70 stations
including the two main transfer hubs, Zhongxiao Fuxing, and Taipei Main Stations.

The Nangang Station, part of the Nangang Line Extension, became operational on December 25, 2008. With the opening of the new
station, area residents and those travelling to Nangang can reach their destinations quicker, while further expanding the public's reach
on the Metro. Featuring several pieces of public art, the Nangang Station offers a pleasant transportation environment and serves
as one of the best examples of Metro beautification. After the eventual linkage with the Taiwan High Speed Rail and Taiwan Rail
Nangang Stations, passengers will be able to transfer effortlessly between these three different rail options at the same station.
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Transportation Environment Overview

Beginning in May 2007, prices for crude oil on the international
market began a rapid rise, causing domestic oil prices to follow
suit. Impacted by these price increases and the global financial
crisis, drivers and motorcycle riders have more incentive than
ever to change their deep-set transportation habits and switch to
mass transit. However, these increases have also caused a large
number of people to begin commuting by scooter. In order to
effectively attract these new motorcycle commuters and reduce
transportation costs, TRTC further discounted Metro ticket prices
from 20% off to 25% off from June 1 to August 31, 2008. Over
these three months, daily ridership increased by an average of
37,957 trips. In 2008, passenger volume for both public buses
and the Metro were up over 2007 levels (Metro passenger
volume increased by 7.8% and bus volume increased by 5.3%),
while total mass transit passenger volumes were up over 12%
compared to those in 2005.

LlEEEEARERERR

Market Position

Since the Muzha Line became operational in March 1996, the
Danshui, Zhonghe, Xindian, Bangiao, Nangang, Tucheng, and
Xiaonanmen Lines have successively come online, creating the
early phase of a Taipei metropolitan area transportation network.
Step by step, its outline is taking shape, with the Metro serving
as its backbone and with public buses playing a supporting
role. The Metro serves as the main method of transport, with
buses ferrying passengers from their homes to Metro stations.
Therefore, in addition to being competitors, the Metro and
public buses also cooperate. TRTC has worked with Taipei City
Government policies, encouraging the use of mass transit by
offering discounts for passengers transferring from buses to the
Metro and vice versa. This allows passengers to complete their
entire trip at a reasonable cost and assists those passengers
travelling to and from the Muzha, Danshui, Zhonghe, Xindian,
Nangang, and Tucheng areas. Transfer discounts make Taipei's
mass transit system an even more attractive choice for residents.

Public Transportation Volume Status in the Taipei Metropolitan Area

NEES
BESIRX Millions of Trips Bus Passenger Volume

L pEEE

MRT Passenger Volume

NEHEEEE

Combined Bus and MRT Passenger Volume

0 2005 2006 2007 2008 2005

5t : BEEAMRKZLEEHRIZ 2005 &F °

2006 2007 2008 2005 2006 2007 2008 I Year

Note: The rates of increase are based on the volumes recorded in 2005.
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Transportation System Operations

Efforts to continuously improve system safety and service quality
paid off in 2008 as ridership continued its year-on-year rise.
A total of 450,024,415 trips took the Metro in 2008 with an
average of 1,229,575 trips daily. This daily figure represents an
increase of 89,220 trips or 7.82% over 2007 daily ridership,
which averaged 1,140,355 trips.

The Metro's high-capacity systems include the Danshui, Zhonghe,
Xindian, Nangang, Bangiao, Tucheng, and Xiaonanmen Lines.
In 2008, a total of more than 414,670,000 trips were made on
these high-capacity lines, with an average of over 1,132,000 trips
daily, an increase of 8.12% over the previous year's average of
1,047,000. Broken down further, the average weekday ridership
was over 1,188,000 compared to 1,101,000 in 2007, an increase
of 7.90%. On weekends and holidays, the average ridership
was 1,011,000, an increase of 8.48% over the 2007 average of
932,000.

The total ridership on the medium-capacity system, the Muzha
Line, exceeded 35.35 million in 2008, with an average of over
96,000 trips daily, a 4.35% increase over 2007's average of
92,000. On weekdays, the average ridership was more than
108,000 trips daily, representing a 4.85% increase over the 2007
average of 103,000 trips. The average number of weekend and
holiday passengers remained stable at over 69,000 trips.

Since the Muzha Line became operational on March 28, 1996,
aside from a slight year-on-year decrease in 2003 due to SARS,
the number of trips taken on the Taipei Metro has steadily

O

::: LIJHEE Average Daily Ridership by Year

FAZ Thousands of Trips

=@= Z;E& High Capacity
=@= MEE Medium Capacity
=@= #EE Total Ridership

increased each year as new lines have been added and existing
lines expanded. 2008 was no exception, with average daily
ridership reaching a record 1,220,000 trips. On February 22,
total accumulated ridership on Taipei Metro reached the 3 billion
trips, taking less than 10 years to increase 30-fold from 100
million trips on December 22, 1998. Taipei Metro reached the 2
billion mark on August 16, 2005 and in just two and a half years
increased ridership by another billion.

In order to provide the public with even more thoughtful service,
Taipei Metro was open round the clock on New Year's Eve in
coordination with the city's New Year's festival, operating for
a total of 43 consecutive hours. In the 24 hour period from
6:00am December 31, 2008 to 6:00am New Year's Day, a total
of 1.95 million trips were taken on the Metro, exceeding the
single-day record set a year before by over 20,000 trips.
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Average system headways during peak operating hours on the
medium and high-capacity systems were 2:50 minutes and
4:36 minutes respectively. For off-peak times, the headways
were 4:51 minutes and 5:39 minutes. These times were well
within the system's targets. (Medium-capacity system targets:
peak times 2-4 minutes, off-peak 4-7 minutes; High-capacity
system targets: peak times 3-7 minutes, off-peak 5-10
minutes).

In order to improve service quality on all lines during off-
peak hours, from January 4, 2008 headways were reduced
from eight minutes to seven minutes during the hours of 6:30
to 7:00 and 19:30 to 23:00 (headways in the sections from
Guting Station-Beitou Station and from Far Eastern Hospital
Station-Kunyang Station were approximately 3.5 minutes).
After implementation, passenger density went from 3.79
people per square meter to 3.21, effectively improving the
Metro riding experience.

From June 1, 2008, peak headways on the Bangiao and
Nangang Lines on City Hall bound trains were reduced to
2:15 minutes, while peak times were also extended to further
reduce passenger density.

Beginning on August 26, an additional train was put into
service at Xinpu Station (originally, it only began accepting
passengers at the Longshan Temple Station). This significantly
improved service quality for our passengers at the Xinpu and
Jiangzicui Stations. Passenger density at these two stations
was reduced to 2.39 people per square meter from 2.45.

s BB B2 On-Time Percentage by Year
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g? Affiliated Business Operations

Aside from our core transportation services, TRTC is also involved
in the operation of additional enterprises such as advertising,
parking lots, shops, and underground shopping malls. Through
these multifaceted business operations, we can increase profits
to reinvest in our core business and provide a wider variety of
services to our passengers. Each enterprise is discussed in detail
below:

Advertising

In order to meet our customers' service needs, we provide a
wide variety of information to riders during their Metro journey.
In addition to the lighted poster advertising spaces and the
installation of plasma display panels (PDP), we now offer a variety
of multimedia advertising options, assisting TRTC to achieve our
goals of internationalization and modernization.

Metro Station and Train Advertising

Metro advertisements come in a variety of forms, such as light
boxes, posters, banners, flags, floor and wall stickers, and
multimedia ads. On the medium-capacity system, there are a
total of 158 advertisements in the stations and 400 aboard the
trains. On the high-capacity lines, there are a total of 1,377 ads
in the stations and 5,832 aboard the trains. There are a total
of 270 plasma televisions installed in Metro stations showing
multimedia advertisements. Even train cars themselves, wrapped
in an all-over design, can become moving advertisements.

Providing Passengers with a Diverse Variety of Information

The purpose of the plasma display installation is to provide
passengers with information as they wait for their train, including
the date, time, and details about the incoming and outgoing
trains. In the current advertising space rental contract, a total
of 15% of the broadcasts each day must be dedicated to
city government or public service announcements and TRTC
related information. Through the end of 2008, a total of 670
government short films and public service announcements were
shown, providing citizens with useful city-related information and
helping to reduce the city government's advertising budget. Also,
echoing Taipei's internationalization policy, we have added a
news ticker that provides news stories from around the globe in
both Chinese and English. While waiting for the train, passengers
can have their hand on the pulse of their city, Taiwan, and the
world.
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Park and Ride Lots

In order to provide the public with a convenient way to pay for
parking no matter their chosen mode of public transit while also
increasing company revenue, most park and ride lots accept
EasyCard as payment. The parking lots at the Danshui, Xindian,
and Haishan Stations feature automated payment collecting
machines in addition to the standard EasyCard readers. At the
Muzha Depot, which is only open on weekends and holidays,
TRTC utilizes both EasyCard and parking attendants to collect
fees.

At the end of 2008, along the Muzha, Danshui, Xindian,
Zhonghe, Nangang, and Tucheng Lines, there were a total of 17
fee-collecting automobile park and ride lots and 32 motorcycle
lots run by TRTC. These lots feature a total of 2,791 fee collecting
automobile parking spaces, 8,175 motorcycle spaces (of which
2,629 collect fees), and 9,773 bicycle parking spaces (of the bike
racks available, 1,272 are double-decker bike racks).

Beginning on June 1, 2008, TRTC implemented park and
ride discounts. Automobile parking fees paid for by EasyCard
can enjoy a NT$5 per hour discount if drivers transfer to the
Metro (limited to the same day, same time period). The
maximum discount awarded is the amount deducted from
the passenger's EasyCard on his or her previous Metro trip.
Motorcycle riders who park in Metro park and ride lots can
enjoy a similar parking discount of NT$3 each visit. In addition, in
coordination with these measures, we also encourage passengers
to purchase unlimited park and ride monthly parking passes.
Through these measures, we hope to increase the number of
commuters who transfer to the Metro from their own vehicles.
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+2: 2008 FEIZERIEMIE Number of Parking Spaces in 2008

KR ISR AR RISHR FEBIR AR TR EEPIER st

Danshui Line  Xindian Line Zhonghe Line Bangiao Line Nangang Line Muzha Line Tucheng Line Xiaonanmen Line  Total

A . 1,392 148 299 0 135 540 277 0 2,791
Automobile Spaces
e 4,238 500 637 617 501 344 1,338 0 8,175
Motorcycle Spaces
8= 3,798 1,205 732 1,610 972 713 783 19 9,773

Bicycle Spaces

t:: BESEERRAIZ Number of Parking Spaces by Year
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Station Shops

In-station shops provide passengers with many shopping
options, including convenience stores, communications
services, and pharmacies. They can pick up the latest music,
fashion accessories, or books while satisfying their appetites
at a variety of restaurants and fast food outlets without ever
leaving the station. Additionally, Beitou, Jiantan, Ximen, and
Xindian Stations also feature passenger service centers that
provide riders with information services. Danshui Station has
an Employment Service Center to provide the public with
valuable information about gaining employment. Guting, Qiyan,
Shandao Temple, and Nanshijiao Stations each provide a space
for social welfare organizations. Taipei City Hall Station features
an Aboriginal Culture and Economics Center, which promotes
aboriginal cultural products. By providing such a variety of shops
and informational centers, TRTC can fulfill the needs of our
passengers and make the Metro an even more important part of
their lives.

With the extension of the Nangang Line to Nangang Station on
December 25, 2008, the system gained two additional station
shops. By the end of 2008, there were a total of 102 shops
throughout the Metro network.

Underground Shopping Malls

Taipei Metro's underground shopping areas allow passengers to
walk between stations without having to brave the elements,
while also featuring products to meet their every need. They
are comfortable, aesthetically pleasing places to shop lacking
the usual ground level noise and traffic. Add in a healthy dose
of promotional activities, and the underground shopping malls
become undoubtedly some of the best places to shop in the
city. In order to improve the quality of the shopping experience
and increase company revenue, in 2008 TRTC implemented a
restructuring plan for these shopping areas:

O East Metro Mall: In order to providing even more services to the
public, we adjusted our strategy to attract tenants in the East
Metro Mall. Some of the spaces were reserved for the Taipei City
Government's Departments of Civil Affairs and Labor to serve as
citizen service centers.

O Zhongshan Metro Mall: To help Taipei reach its goal of
becoming a cultural book city, we aimed to attract tenants to
the Zhongshan Metro Book Street and food court, providing the
public with an innovative shopping environment with a healthy
dose of culture.

Underground Links Between Taipei Metro and
Local Businesses

Recently, TRTC has sought to link up Taipei Metro with
neighboring buildings through comfortable, convenient
underground walkways. Not only can these connect the
Metro to local shopping areas and other important facilities,
the surrounding area can become more prosperous through
increased foot traffic and enhanced business opportunities.
These improvements, in turn, can boost Metro ridership creating
benefits for passengers, businesses, and TRTC. Underground
connections currently in use include the Caesar Hotel linked with
Taipei Main Station Exit 6 and the link between Zhongxiao Fuxing
Station Exit 4 and the Pacific SOGO department store.

In the future, TRTC will continue to promote the relocation and
connection between the Taipei City Hall Transit Station and Exit
2 of the Taipei City Hall Metro Station, while also connecting Exit
3 of the Taipei City Hall Metro Station to the Cathay Plaza now
under construction.

ESHEEEETE Number and Area of Mall Shops

AL 4T Zhongshan Metro Mall ERE M T T East Metro Mall &5t Total
WTERE (m) Length of the Metro Mall (m) 815 725 1,540
[EEHE(E () Number of Shop Spaces (Unit) 81 35 116
[EEEETE (m2) Shop Area (m?2) 4,558 4171 8,729

3 EEREERM T HREENE
Number of Station Shops and Shops in Underground Shopping Malls by Year

R Unit < . BREIEH Station Shops - < N EIEIEE! Shops in Underground Malls

2005 2006 2007

2000 2001 2003 2004

5t ¢ 2005 FH MEEISHE BORRIGAT M EERBERIHEEHEEREEE -

Note: The number of shops in underground shopping malls decreased in 2005 due to the fact that the Taipei City Government took over management of the Taipei Main Station Mall

that year.
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Other Operating Revenue

Fare Revenue

o BEREMEZEUIA Revenue from Affiliated Businesses by Year
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Non-Operating Income

In 2008, non-operating income totaled NT$310 million, which was
composed of NT$150 million in financial income and NT$160 million
in other non-operating income. Over the past few years interest rates
have continued to fall significantly, impacting financial income. In
2008, usable capital totaled NT$5.414 billion, which was carefully
invested to maximize stable returns.

LI EERHHES

Rental Expenditures by Year

FE 1996-2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Year
=R 20.21 23.56 23.43 23.76
s BT (=0 (=0 (=0 &t
Rental Fee  NT$1for NT$2.021 NT$2.356 NT$2.343 NT$2.376
Each Line Billion Billion Billion Billion
#Rst
2005 2006 2007 2008
Total
23.91 2417 24.35 24.49 187.89
(= (= (= (= (=0
NT$2.391 NT$2.417 NT$2.435 NT$2.449 NT$18.789
Billion Billion Billion Billion Billion

Rental Expenditures

Article 15 of the Statute Governing the Establishment of Public
Mass Transit Corporations states that, "Property utilized by a
mass transit system that belongs to the government shall be
leased to the transit corporation. However, the government
shall not collect rental fees in the first five years of the rapid
transit corporation's operations if the transport network
has not yet been completed. The corporation is responsible
for all maintenance of Metro property and equipment and
replacement of any worn out or outdated equipment on the
system." Operating under this statute, the Taipei city government
authorized Taipei Metro to operate on city property leased by
TRTC. During the five-year rental grace period that began in
1996, the Taipei City Government charged a symbolic rental fee
on each line of one NT dollar. During the sixth year of operations,
both sides signed the renegotiated Taipei Metro Area Mass
Transit System Property Rental Agreement, which is valid from
March 28, 2001 through December 31, 2010. Rent is based
on equipment replacement costs and 4% of yearly operating
income. Both sides meet to renegotiate these terms every two
years. In 2008, TRTC paid a total of NT$2.449 billion in rental
fees, all allotted to the Taipei Metropolitan Area Rapid Transit
Fixed Asset Replacement Fund. This fund is the main financial
resource covering the Metro system's future replacement and
upgrading costs, serving to safeguard the sustainable operation
of the Metro. As of the end of 2008, the total accumulated rent
remitted was NT$18.789 billion.
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Transfer Discount Expenditures

On June 12, 2002, the IC EasyCard ticket verification system
came into full commercial operation. People use the same
EasyCard to pay fares for both the Metro and bus systems, no
longer having to keep track of two separate tickets. The card
also serves as an easy way to offer transfer discounts to our
passengers. Riders using the EasyCard who transfer from the
Metro to a bus will automatically receive a free bus ride (for rides
of more than one section, only the first section will be at no
charge). On November 1, 2003, it became even more inviting to
take public transit, as discounts were expanded to include bus
riders transferring to the Metro. Passengers using their EasyCard,
no matter if they take the Metro and then transfer to a bus or
vice versa, will enjoy a discount of NT$8 on each leg of their trip
during a one-hour time period. Passengers holding a student
EasyCard receive a discount of NT$6. For those holding Charity,
Escort, Senior, and Concessionaire EasyCards, the transfer
discount is NT$4. By the end of 2008, the number of riders
taking advantage of these transfer benefits reached 417,100 trips
per day, up from 170,200 per day at the start of the program,
clearly showing that transfer discounts can encourage the public
to take advantage of mass transit.

In accordance with Taipei City policy, TRTC began to shoulder a
portion of the costs of the transfer discounts in 2001. In the first year,
TRTC was responsible for NT$286 million of the total, while Taipei's
Department of Transportation covered NT$281 million. Beginning in
2002, TRTC became responsible for the entire cost of the discounts
(from bus to Metro and vice versa), which totaled NT$702 million in
2002, NT$821 million in 2003, NT$829 million in 2004, and NT$837
million in 2005, NT$863 million in 2006, NT$923 million in 2007, and
NT$1.004 billion in 2008 for an accumulated total of NT6.265 billion.

o BEIRZFILR After Tax Profits by Year

B&Jt Millions of NT$
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Profit Overview

During its first two years of operations, which began in 1996,
TRTC operated at a loss. However, following the expansion of
the Taipei Metro network, the company began to turn a profit in
1998 and in 2000 TRTC's after-tax profit totaled NT$2.59 billion.
The following year, TRTC was obliged to begin paying rental fees
to the city (which includes equipment replacement costs plus 4%
of yearly operating income) and cover the cost of rider transfer
discounts, so after tax profits declined. Through the continuous
hard work of all of our employees to expand business and cut
costs, we have maintained an after tax profit of NT$600 million
to NT$800 million in subsequent years, with the exception of
2003 due to the SARS outbreak when after tax profit totaled
NT$360 million.

718 668 789 720 607

7~ e et T R

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 £F Year
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At Taipei Metro, we continuously strive to provide a convenient, safe, and comfortable riding

experience for our passengers. In 2008, we worked to improve and enhance the system's existing

equipment, providing innovative new services to ensure our passengers enjoy a reliable, safe travel

environment.
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System Security

Improving service quality and establishing a safe transport
environment requires TRTC to perform system and train
maintenance. These measures, however, are not enough. We
must also attempt to reduce the occurrence of Metro delays
lasting five minutes or more, study and improve the reasons
behind train incidents, perform disaster simulation drills, and
strengthen employee training.

Enhanced System Reliability

According to data provided at the Barcelona Management
Meeting by the London Imperial College's Railway and Transport
Strategy Centre (RTSC), Taipei Metro has ranked number one
in reliability among the 26 members of the Nova/CoMET
consortiums from 2004 to 2007. Our first place ranking four
years running affirms that Taipei Metro has already reached a
world-class level of reliability.

In 2008, TRTC continued to implement our Metro System
Operations Reliability Management Program and established the
goal of achieving the car-kilomete between incidents of delays
greater than 5 minutes at 1.6 million and above. With the hard
work of all TRTC employees, there were only 40 such delays in
2008 with an average of one every 1.665 million car-kilometers,
exceeding our 2008 operational target.
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Enhancing Platform Safety for Passengers

Installation of platform screen doors on the six platforms at
the Taipei Main Station and Zhongxiao Fuxing Station was
completed at the end of 2006, and installation of the Track
Intrusion Detection System developed by TRTC was completed in
September 2008 at all remaining stations on the high-capacity
lines. These two measures effectively reduce the risk of accidents
caused by people or articles falling onto the track. When the
system detects an intrusion onto the track, it automatically sets
off warning lights and sirens, informing station attendants of
the event so they can respond immediately, thereby increasing
the overall safety of the Metro system. From the completion
of installation through the end of December 2008, the Track
Intrusion Detection System detected a total of 68 intrusion
events. In order to prevent the visually impaired from mistaking
the gaps between train cars for the train door and falling onto
the track, the high-capacity trains were fitted with springs
spanning these gaps. Work was completed in June 2008 on
the 64 existing type-301, 321, and 341 trains. As the newly
purchased model 371 trains were delivered, we also installed this
system, completing work on 26.5 trains by December 2008.

If an emergency occurs while passengers are waiting for their
trains, they can immediately contact the Passenger Agent Officer
on the track-level emergency intercom to request assistance. The
emergency intercoms on the platforms of the Danshui Line were
replaced with video-capable models that are water and dust
resistant.

Disaster Simulation Drills and Work to Guard
against Typhoons and Floods

To better prepare personnel in the event of a disaster while
minimizing injuries, casualties, and property loss, TRTC holds
scheduled disaster simulation drills to simulate a variety of
scenarios. In 2008, TRTC held a total of 22 drills, covering
incidents caused by both system error and natural disaster, in
order to strengthen personnel experience in dealing with a
variety of potential disaster situations and reduce the likelihood
of problems or errors. Through these drills, both TRTC
transportation affairs and maintenance units and those outside
of TRTC, such as fire fighters, EMT personnel, and police can
become acquainted with necessary procedures, in order to
maximize the effectiveness of rescue and repair efforts in the
event of a real emergency situation.

To maintain operational safety during the typhoon season
and floods, in addition to properly managing and maintaining
flood prevention equipment and facilities in each station, two
additional inspections have been performed to test flood
preparedness. Any necessary improvements can be made to
correct deficiencies before flooding events occur.

Real-time Monitoring System Integration and
Equipment Expansion

To prevent tragedies like the subway fire in Daegu, South Korea,
TRTC began to install CCTV systems in 2007 into operational
trains that did not yet have video systems installed. This included
one type-301 train, the Minquan W. Rd., and Yuanshan Stations
on the Danshui Line along with the line's Operations Control
Center. Work was completed on October 8, 2008, providing
the control center, stations, and drivers with real-time video of
train interiors, cabs, and the track ahead. Recordings of incidents
could also be used as evidence and for further research. If the
results of this test program are successful, it will be expanded in
the coming years to the entire fleet.
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To protect the rights and safety of our passengers, the
monitoring systems in the stations, administrative control
centers, underground streets, park and ride lots, and
depots will be upgraded to a digital system over two
years beginning in 2008. Over the first year, the Zhonghe,
Bangiao, and Tucheng Lines added 108 video cameras. In
2009, we will continue to add additional cameras on the
Danshui, Xindian, Zhonghe, and Xiaonanmen Lines. By
the end of 2008, there were a total of 4,554 cameras on
the entire Metro network, which will deter illicit activities,
reduce blind spots, and enhance passenger safety.

Innovative Services

TRTC has continuously aimed to create a convenient,
comfortable transportation environment for our passengers.
To achieve this goal, we have implemented a variety of
measures to enhance service quality, which have not gone
unnoticed by the public. In 2008, the company continued to
implement innovative and friendly service measures. Some of
the major innovations are listed below:
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Assisting Taiwan Rail Install EasyCard Readers at
19 Stations between Keelung and Jungli

In order to increase efficiency of passengers entering and exiting
at the gates and eliminate the need for multiple tickets, EasyCard
Corporation enlisted TRTC's technical expertise and experience
to assist them in planning the framework and related hardware
equipment for the EasyCard system to be used in 19 Taiwan
Rail stations from Keelung to Jungli. TRTC was responsible
for the installation, testing, and maintenance of the central
processing system, in-station systems, ticket readers, and station
personnel processing equipment. We implemented the Taiwan
Rail installation beginning on June 20, 2008 in two phases, as
outlined below:

O Phase One: On June 20, 2008, EasyCards could be used at
the Taipei, Wanhua, Bangiao, and Shulin Stations.
On July 7, 2008, exiting passengers could use
their EasyCards at the Songshan Station (card use
limited to exit gates).

O Phase Two: By August 1, 2008, all 19 rail stations from
Keelung to Jungli were accessible using EasyCard.

The Interactive Emergency Evacuation Exhibition
Center Opens to the Public

Studying the recent spate of fires and terrorist attacks in subway
systems, untrained personnel were a major factor contributing
to the high number of injuries and deaths. Therefore, in order
to maintain both system and passenger safety, TRTC established
the first domestic Interactive Emergency Evacuation Exhibition
Center. The center includes both displays as well as hands-
on activities using emergency equipment to allow people to
familiarize themselves with equipment that they are normally
not permitted to touch or to use in non-emergency situations.
Equipment used in the center includes emergency exits for
drivers on trains, platform emergency exits, emergency stop
buttons, fire extinguishers, and the Track Intrusion Detection
System. Participants can operate safety equipment firsthand and
familiarize themselves with proper usage. In the event of a real
emergency, they will know exactly what to do. The Interactive
Emergency Evacuation Exhibition Center is located on the first
floor of the Metro's Beitou Resort Training Center, occupying
a total of 747 ping (2,469 square meters). The indoor facilities
consist primarily of interactive games and equipment for hands-
on practice, while outdoor facilities offer simulated situations for
visitors. The center was completed in early 2008 and was opened
to the public on June 3 of that year.

After opening to the public, the Interactive Emergency
Evacuation Exhibition Center has become a popular choice for
school fieldtrips. By the end of 2008, a total of 11,269 people
had visited the center, the majority of which were elementary
and nursery school students. According to the visitor satisfaction
surveys collected from July to December, 99.08% of respondents
were satisfied with their experience and over 99% said they
would recommend the center to friends and relatives.
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Enhancing and Improving Equipment
and Facilities

Train Overhaul Program

In order to enhance system safety and ensure daily operations,
in addition to scheduled maintenance, trains are also regularly
overhauled. As a result, the availability rates of trains on
the medium and high-capacity lines are 90.9% and 94.8%
respectively.

O In 2008, we completed overhauls on 5 pairs of medium-
capacity train cars and performed scheduled 600,000
kilometers checkups and maintenance. Checkup and
maintenance skills were upgraded to level five to increase the
average number of kilometers per malfunction and availability
rate, thus ensuring operational quality.

O High-Capacity 301-type train 12-year overhaul program: From
the beginning of implementation in January 2007 through the
end of December 2008, work was completed on 21 trains.
The remaining trains in the fleet (total of 22 trains) will be
completed by January 2009.

O High-Capacity 321-type train 9-year overhaul program:
Beginning in March 2006, the overhaul of all 36 trains in the
fleet was completed in December 2008.

O High-capacity 341-type train 3-year overhaul program:
Beginning in September 2007, overhaul of the entire fleet of 6
trains was completed in February 2008.
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Improving Station Environments

The 2005 renovation of station restrooms on the Muzha Line
enjoyed overwhelmingly positive public reaction. Beginning in
2007, we continued to implement such improvements on the
Danshui Line, focusing especially on high-use restrooms, older
facilities, and stations lacking dedicated barrier-free restrooms.
Our renovation program will provide our passengers with bright,
clean, and comfortable bathroom environments. In 2007, we
completed improvements at the Shilin and Jiantan Stations and
at the Zhongshan and East Metro Malls. Beginning in March
2008, TRTC successively completed additional renovations at the
Minguan West Road and Shuanglian Stations to add additional
restrooms (added three women's facilities, one urinal, and two
dedicated barrier-free restrooms that can also be used by parents
with children). Improvements were also made to the barrier-free
facilities at the Guandu, Zhongyi, Fuxinggang, Zhongshan, and
Zhuwei Stations. The ratio of women's to men's restrooms in the
entire Metro system increased from 1.33 to 1.9.

The Muzha Line began transporting passengers in 1996 and over
the intervening 12 years stations have begun to show their age.
In 2007, renovations were completed at the Nanjing East Road,
Linguang, Wanfang Community, and Muzha Stations. Over the
past year, we continued to perform such renovations at the
Wanfang Hospital, Liuzhangli, Xinhai, and Taipei Zoo stations,
which were completed at the end of August. To improve train
waiting area environments, improvements were carried out on
station air conditioning systems. In 2007, work was completed
at Jingan, NTU Hospital, and Kunyang Stations and the Muzha
Line section of the Zhongxiao Fuxing Station. In March 2008,
we completed improvements at all stations on the Muzha Line
and installation of a new air conditioning system at the depot.
These projects have significantly improved the quality of air
conditioning, essential to providing passengers with a more
comfortable travel environment.
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Noise Reduction Projects

In order to improve quality of life for people residing near the
street-level and elevated portions of the Metro system, in 2000
TRTC began installing soundproofing barriers along the tracks.
Through the end of 2008, we have completed 9,480 meters of
barriers along the high-capacity lines, with an additional 740
meters along medium-capacity lines. Following the completion
of the barriers, measurements showed that total noise levels
were reduced by 8 to 12 decibels. In 2008, we continued noise
abatement construction in the areas entering and exiting Shilin
and Zhishan Station, the track section between Shipai and Qilian
Stations, the street-level sections between Qilian Station and
Gongguan Road, and the track sections from Gongguan Road to
Qiyan Station and Qiyan to Beitou Stations. We also completed
the section from Zhongshan Junior High School to Nanjing East
Road Stations on the Muzha Line. These can serve as a model for
future noise reduction construction programs.

High-Capacity Train Renovations

Taipei Metro's high-capacity 301-type trains came into service in
1997. The wear and tear of transporting passengers of the past
11 years is apparent inside these trains and they were in need
of refurbishing. TRTC thus implemented a program to remodel
the insides of these trains, including floor repairs, window
frame replacement, improvements to rubber seat accents, and
repainting of the decorative strips on train walls.

O Train flooring replacement: Beginning in November 2007, the
floors were replaced in 2.5 trains by the end of 2008. TRTC
expects that flooring replacement will be completed by the
end of December 2012 for all 22 trains in the 301 fleet.

O Window frame replacement: Replacements began in
December 2007 and were completed for the entire 22 train
fleet in September 2008.

O Seat accent strips improvement: Work began in August 2008
and was completed on all 22 trains in December 2008.

O Repainting decorative wall strips: Work began in June 2008
and 13.5 trains were completed by the end of December
2008. We estimate that the remaining trains in the 301 fleet
will be completed at the end of February 2009.
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Improving the Accuracy of Train Arrival Information

In order to improve the accuracy of station train information
displays for trains added at peak hours, the arrival times displayed
will be based on the occupied track signal rather the signal
signifying that the train has left the previous station. This will allow
TRTC to provide more accurate arrival information for passengers
further down the line. In 2008, work was begun to improve the
arrival information display system and on December 22 software
installation and testing was completed at 56 stations along the
Danshui, Zhonghe, Xindian, Bangiao, Nangang, and Tucheng lines
(including the Operations Control Center) to provide passengers
with more accurate information.

Ensuring the Stability and Safety of the
Computerized Signal Operations Control System

Over the past four years, TRTC has been in the process of
replacing the computerized operation control system at the
control center for the high-capacity lines, which include Danshui,
Xindian, Zhonghe, Nangang, Bangiao, and Tucheng Lines.
Currently, the new computerized signal systems for each line
(including backup) were competed in 2008, with reliability
certification scheduled to be completed by the end of 20009.

Establishing Autonomous Circuit Board
Maintenance Capabilities

The R&D Center of the Rolling Stock Division is responsible for
all inspections and repairs of circuit boards, the development
of automated testing software and new inspection and repair
tools, maintaining instrument calibration, and cooperating with
domestic research organizations to introduce new maintenance
technologies. In 2008, the Center repaired 2,253 circuit boards
and performed preventative maintenance on 2,405 circuit
boards, for a total of 4,658 repair jobs. This in an increase of
23% over the 3,786 repairs performed in 2007. In addition, the
Center completed the development or revision of three different
automated circuit board testing software programs and developed
and installed a third set of automated testing equipment. Not
only did the system cost one third of what it would have with an
outside contractor, future expansion or updates to the system can
also be done in-house and TRTC is not tied to a certain outside
contractor.
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Enhancing Operational Efficiency

Sustainable operations are a goal of any enterprise. To realize this
goal, TRTC took the initiative to improve operational effectiveness,
implement sound management practices, and enhance the
digitization of automated operation procedures to build a solid
foundation for sustainable operations.

Encouraging New Ideas

In 1996, to encourage employees to develop their imaginations
and actively participate in improving the Taipei Metro, TRTC
began providing incentives for employees to submit proposals for
improvement projects. The program employs a two-phase judging
system. The first phase rewards employees for finding problems on
their own and proposing ways to solve them. In the second phase,
especially creative proposals are further reviewed and their authors
are rewarded. In 2008, a total of 978 proposals were submitted,
the highest since the program was first implemented. Of these,
authors were rewarded in 419 cases, with 54 proposals, or 5.5% of
the total, awarded outstanding or above.

In order to encourage the effective implementation of large-scale
improvement proposals, TRTC held the Display and Judging of
Outstanding Proposals for 2008 to recognize those prize winning
proposals from 2007 and 2008 that had been implemented. Both
the submitter and those departments responsible were invited
to attend. In 2008, a total of 16 proposals were submitted for
competition and in the first phase, the judging committee chose
6 proposals to advance to the finals. The judging committee and
participating staff evaluated these final proposals and chose the
top three proposals, which were awarded NT$80,000, NT$50,000,
and NT$30,000 respectively.

With the hard work of all employees to continuously improve and
innovate, the quality of proposals is also receiving recognition from
outside TRTC. In the 2008, under the Executive Yuan's system to
increase participation and employee proposals, the Power Relay
Testing Platform Proposal was awarded the special prize in the
technology portion while the Planning and Design of the Incident

Management System Proposal was awarded the innovation prize
and came in second place overall. These awards not only bring
pride to TRTC, but also encourage an atmosphere of innovation
among company personnel.

Promoting Universal Quality Control Circle
Activities

To foster an environment of teamwork and cooperation, while
encouraging employees to take the initiative to locate and tackle
problems on their own, TRTC promoted participation in quality-
control circle activities. Coworkers formed their own groups to
brainstorm and pool their wisdom to make system improvements.
In 2008, a total of 75 circles met and produced proposals to
enhance a variety of areas such as passenger services, equipment
maintenance, and operational effectiveness. Over the course of the
year, 75 such quality-control circle proposals were implemented,
effectively improving operational quality, benefitting TRTC in
both tangible and intangible ways. The 21st National Teamwork
Competition was held in 2008 and TRTC's Medium Capacity
Transportation Division's Rolling Stock Plant QCC proposal to
reduce preventative maintenance material abnormalities won the
Gold Tower Award, while the Planning Division's Development and
Evaluation Section QCC to increase the proposal submission rate
for administrative departments was awarded the bronze. These
two teams received their awards at a ceremony on October 22,
2008 held by the Industrial Development Bureau, Executive Yuan.

51

Operating Achievements



HEIEFEEFL - IBEENSIEWEE

O E 2008 TFZE 2010 & » STEIEC SHER KL - 154
BERBEIREEZTRERRNREE  TRIISEEEE
i fBEME - BEEREITEEDE LIRS
OREREERBEE -

O RRSTHFRRIERES IBREBNISEETE] - BREFE
NBEZBA S - DEfEENSBISEETRFERE
SUERRETD -

O RIEHBNEERS IR RESSILEEEERRBEN
BHATRICETIESHRIOEREIN EIBENS » TS
EISEEEAREE - 12 2008 F 3 BEUS AA FRIEE > I
RETHIRMRES/HEESRNZ 12008 BEREE
82— EEEHEIOTHE ) DHERES 1 HER -

ABTEARTIFLR

RENHBERET(FLR MR TELERIKRERS
mE - [FIHE SEETHEBETIENRERE 8%
N EARATESEEEMEIWETRKE  BRIHY
IRELZEZER > TRFEHAISEHFIBEARERE
- P8 TEESEMETWERBENERE (FX &
HREHRETEMISENE 5,000 NFSEETERFESRE
& - REFESEERGENE 1,200 NFBSHRBREEBHFR
BRE - 2008 FEFDMBRBEFREHRHEEE 160 A
X~ ZEFEEREYME 17 AKX -

552008 FNHFENIHE S EERHEESEHERE
BEx ) LIRSEHESBEEIERITIFRL » LiRFITE
ZERIRERBEE » 5F 25 AREE - LA » RBMRES
RHISRBAESHEENTEE  TESHEEESEAH
BDPIEESHE R RAY TE » ERSHEUERARIBEEE 1B
SFATERREBRANGE  EMBENFETERLEEE
EERIEAET] - DNAS 2008 FREZB [ SHEERR - 325RH
MESILMHRNEIRREEREESHRIE (BINEL 5
2 (EF) - KHTEXBMRBHEERKEZER - B8
RAEERFBNE » 2008 F EHFFHEEREMATITEDIL
SDELULEFWEER 154 AEXEME 20086 FT
FETERIN S DELUEFWEER 0914 -

52

HEERR



Promoting New Digital Technology and Improved
Information Management

O From 2008 to 2010, TRTC is implementing a system-wide
replacement of Internet equipment. At the same time, we will
also change the fiber optic cabling from a tree-shaped to a ring
structure, while also establishing a backup system for important
network equipment. These measures will improve network
reliability and service quality.

O In coordination with the Environmental Protection Agency's
strategy to reduce the digital divide, TRTC donated its used
personal computers to give Taiwan's rural areas access to
improved technology and promote widespread computer
literacy.

O To provide the disabled with convenient access to information
about Metro transportation and services, TRTC employees
took the initiative to revise the company's website to meet
accessibility standards. In March 2008, the page was awarded
the AA accessibility rating and won first place in Division One
of the Internet Accessibility Awards held by the Research,
Development, and Evaluation Commission, Executive Yuan.

Enhancing Driver Morale

To raise driver morale and to improve safety and service quality,
TRTC held a competition to reward drivers on high-capacity
lines who accumulate long periods of driving free of incidents.
Furthermore, to showcase the technical expertise of train drivers,
reward their contributions in improving passenger safety, and
increase their sense of unity and pride, TRTC developed the High-
capacity Train Driver Award. Those drivers accumulating 5,000
hours of incident-free driving received a gold medal, while those
who had accumulated 1,200 hours were awarded a silver medal.
In 2008, 160 drivers earned silver, while 17 earned gold.

Also, during the second half of 2008, TRTC held the High-
Capacity Line Control Engineer Competition to reward
control personnel who accumulated the longest work hours
without incident. The increased focus and enthusiasm of
control engineers can improve the safety and quality of
services we provide our passengers. A total of 25 control
engineers received awards. To effectively improve control
personnel reliability in handling predictable incidents and
integrate related communication to lower levels regarding
dispatch decisions, each team member must exchange and
pass along relevant information, enhancing the quality of
internal communication and coordination. This will effectively
mobilize the control center's overall functions and capabilities.
In 2008, we established an Incident Management System,
which was awarded second place in the innovation division
at the second round of the Taipei City Government Creative
Proposal Competition. After the system was put into place, our
operational service quality saw significant improvements. In the
first half of 2008, prior to its implementation, the control center
was responsible for 1.5 delays of five minutes or more, while in
the second half of the year, this number was reduced to just 0.9
incidents.
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TRTC continued to hold a variety of marketing activities and provide opportunities for the public to
get a behind-the-scenes look at the Metro. Through these interactions, the public can gain a deeper
understanding of the Taipei Metro's system facilities and equipment, encouraging them to become
loyal Metro riders. Hosting a diverse array of cultural and recreational activities brings us closer to our

passengers, turning Taipei Metro into a cultural space as well as a mass transit provider.
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’ Developing Public Relations
-

Handling and Controlling Large Crowds

Taipei Metro has already become a key means of transportation
for area residents, with especially large numbers of passengers
choosing to ride the Metro to large-scale activities, such as New
Year's Eve parties, the Taipei Lantern Festival, and concerts.
Providing passengers with safe, efficient transportation, no
matter the occasion, is our primary goal. In 2008, some major
activities held by the Taipei City Government included the 2008
New Year's Day Flag Raising Ceremony, the 2008 Taipei Lantern
Festival, the 2008 ING Taipei International Marathon, and its
annual New Year's Eve Party. To meet the needs of passengers
during these events, Taipei Metro began running early and
continued to send additional trains late into the night. We also
established station crowd control measures to effectively disperse
crowds and getting passengers on their way as quickly as
possible.

During the Taipei City New Year's Eve celebrations, Taipei Metro
continued to run trains through the night, staying in operation
for 43 consecutive hours. During the 24-hour period beginning
at 6am December 31, Taipei Metro transported 1.95 million trips,
breaking the record set a year earlier by more than 20,000 riders.
In addition to mobilizing station, car service, maintenance, and
administrative personnel, additional support was provided by
officers from the Rapid Transit Division of the Taipei City Police
Department and the Metro volunteer team. In total, there were
over 400 support personnel called in to assist on top of the
usual service and maintenance personnel already on duty. They
helped to implement level-three crowd control measures at seven
key stations to maintain passenger safety. In the periods before
and after the party, headway was reduced to the shortest time
possible to get passengers to their destinations and back home
with the shortest waits possible.
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Visits by Foreign Guests and the General Public
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Processing Passenger Opinions

To maintain exceptional service quality, TRTC must be open and
receptive to the opinions and suggestions of our passengers.
We have provided the public with a variety of communication
channels, such as a 24-hour service hotline, an online company
mailbox, the Mayor's Mailbox, and suggestion forms available in
Metro stations.

In 2008, we received 195,172 opinions from passengers, 26,000
more than in 2007. The total included 4,774 passenger opinion
forms, 1,958 emails to our mailbox, 1,532 emails to the Mayor's
Mailbox, and 186,908 calls to our service hotline. 255 expressed
thanks or praise, 191 expressed complaints, while 194,726 were
general inquiries or offered suggestions.

Our 24-hour customer service center was established on July
29, 2004. In 2008, we received and processed 299,378 calls,
averaging 25,000 calls per month, an increase of 4,000 calls
per month over last year. Most calls were inquiries regarding
personnel or administrative services, second most common were
questions about system equipment and operations, such as
operating times and headway.

The customer service center really achieves its full potential
during special activities or following incidents. Calls to the center
increase significantly prior to New Year's Eve celebrations, during
typhoons, and whenever TRTC announces it is looking to hire

2008 FERFIVEIEIREERAER]

R
o f

new personnel. In July and September 2008, when Taiwan was
hit by typhoons Fungwong and Sinlaku, the daily call average
increased from 800 to over 4,000 calls. In each of those months,
the number of calls exceeded 30,000, showing that the public
is taking full advantage of this service and of speaking with a
customer service representative in real-time.

Categories of Calls Handled by the Customer Service Center in 2008 by Percentage

>

ERFSEITEEEFS Service and Administration

EE1R1E Surrounding Environment
ES1ER{# Station Facilities
ERHES Trains

EL{h Other

FA=i82 8 Customer Service Center Call Volume in 2008 by Month

=@= BERRH
Total Number of Calls

=0= NEEH
Outgoing Calls

0= KTEN
Incoming Calls

B3 Month
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Regularly Scheduled Public Visits

In the event of an emergency, passengers familiar with emergency
station exits, emergency signs, fire-fighting equipment, and
evacuation procedures are better prepared to protect themselves
and help others. Since 2004, TRTC has scheduled regular visits for
members of the public to introduce them to such equipment and
facilities. We have invited residents living near stations, community
development associations, and students to attend guided Metro
station tours to familiarize themselves with evacuation routes
and related equipment. In addition to learning valuable safety
information, these visits help promote interaction between Taipei
Metro and the community. In 2008, 3,152 people took part in a
total of 79 tours.

The Beitou Resort

The Beitou Resort, located in the Beitou Depot, was opened to
the public on July 14, 2002 as a way to effectively use company
resources and give back to the community. Members can enjoy
the recreational facilities and companies can hold their own
training activities at the resort. Services include the use or rental
of training classrooms, computer classrooms, a multi-purpose
conference room, basketball and badminton courts, a table
tennis room, a billiards room, an aerobics room, squash courts,
a fitness center, a children's amusement center, and a swimming
pool. In order to provide more comfortable, cordial service and
enhance the overall environment, we completed renovations of
the first floor of the training building, added an aerobics room on
B2 of the training activity center, and enhanced pool equipment
over this past year. In 2008, classrooms were rented out 2,091
times, dormitories occupied 11,202 room/days, and the training
and activity center used by 145,297 people.
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| Marketing Activities

Celebrating Taipei Metro's 3 Billion Trips Milestone

Taipei Metro began transporting passengers in 1996 and on
February 22, 2008, our ridership surpassed the three billion
mark. To thank our passengers for their support, TRTC held a
press conference in the basement of Taipei Main Station, inviting
the mayor, the Taipei City Council, and the media to celebrate
this occasion and help spread the spirit and culture of the Metro.
On March 8, we held a concert in the Danshui Station plaza,
featuring trivia and a prize drawing. The concert allowed us
to celebrate our milestone while thanking those who made it
possible.

Maokong Gondola Promotion and Marketing
Activities

Celebrating 3 Million Trips

On February 17, 2008, the Maokong Gondola whisked its 3
million trips on an aerial adventure. At 8:30am that morning,
TRTC handed out 10,000 commemorative water bottles at
the Taipei Zoo Station to gondola passengers to celebrate the
milestone. We also marked the occasion by decorating five
gondola cars with multi-colored LED light strips, which made for
an amazing sight in the night sky.

Concert to Celebrate 5 Million Trips and the Gondola's
One-Year Anniversary

On July 1, 2008, the Maokong Gondola celebrated another
milestone, five million trips, just three days before its one year
anniversary on July 4. On Friday, July 4 beginning at 9am, TRTC
gave away 6,000 commemorative cups to passengers at the
gates at the 4th floor gondola entrance. Of these, 500 cups also
contained a coupon that could be exchanged for even more
merchandise. From 6pm to 10pm that night, TRTC also held a
ceremony in the parking lot across from the Taipei Zoo Station
to celebrate the double milestones, hosted by Taipei Mayor Hau
Lung-bin. The activity also included large prizes and a concert
featuring a bevy of famous pop stars.

Maokong Gondola Character Design Contest

From July 4 through August 18, 2008, TRTC held a competition
to choose a character designed by members of the public to
represent the Maokong Gondola. A total of 859 objects were
submitted, with one winning first place and five runners up.
Following some slight changes, the first place winner was
constructed into a large doll.

Maokong Gondola Essay and Photography
Competitions

The Maokong Gondola could only achieve five million trips and
reach its first birthday as a result of the support of the public. To
fire things up a notch and invite more public participation, from
late July through August 7, 2008, TRTC requested submissions
for a Maokong Gondola essay contest, receiving a total of 400
submissions. From late July through August 18, 2008, TRTC
also accepted photography submissions, receiving a total of 642
entries. The works, many of them quite touching, were judged by
professional judges and added further depth to our celebrations.
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Commemorative Metro and Gondola Merchandise

This year, we developed a wide variety of new, exciting Metro
merchandise and looked to show off our achievements by
taking part in the 2008 Taipei Souvenir and Gift Competition.
TRTC's Maokong Gondola series of merchandise was chosen as
products representative of Taipei, while the Taipei Metro Routes
Handkerchief was chosen as one of the "Must Buy" items of
Taipei City. These recognitions raised the profile of TRTC and put
a spotlight on our collection of creative merchandise.

Taipei Metro Commemorative Merchandise and
Promotions

O To get people talking about Metro merchandise, we designed
a city map that includes the Metro network. Beginning on
January 9, 2008, a series of goods, including T-shirts, a
handkerchief, silver jewelry, and pens emblazoned with the
design, were available for sale. (Seven products with a total of
50 styles.)

O In order to meet the needs of Metro travelers, TRTC released
a series of Metro ticket holders featuring patented locking
technology on February 7 to celebrate the Chinese New Year
holiday. During this initial sales period, we offered 10% off
and held prize drawings.

O To celebrate having had 3 billion Metro trips, TRTC not only
released a special set of figurines, Metro train-themed office
supplies, and clothing (a total of 20 products), but also
offered 30% off for 30 days from March 15 to April 13 on all
Metro merchandise to thank Metro fans for their support.

O In coordination with Chinese Valentine's Day, TRTC issued
a set of commemorative T-shirts decorated with Swarovski
crystal.

O During the Taipei International Travel Fair 2008, TRTC sold
metro merchandise at the exhibition hall, offering gifts with
purchases and discounts on certain merchandise.

Maokong Gondola Commemorative Merchandise and
Promotions

O To stimulate sales over the New Year's Day holiday, we offered
the Maokong Gondola shaped pen holder at half price.

O To celebrate reaching the 3 million trips mark, the Maokong
Gondola souvenier shop held a ten day sale from February
17-26.

O Maokong is a renowned tea growing area, so TRTC developed
a series of three characters to represent the Maokong
Gondola: Mao, Kong, and Tea. From May 17, 2008, a series
of 53 products in 19 different categories were made available
featuring these characters.

O To keep the Maokong Gondola merchandise fever burning
strong, TRTC released a second wave of Mao, Kong, and
Tea products, including 30 different items in 10 categories,
beginning in September. We also offered discounts to thank
our customers for their support.

O On May 5, 2008, TRTC remodeled the station souvenier shop,
incorporating some of the Maokong Gondola's characteristics,
while adding the characters Mao, Kong, and Tea in the
background. The shop now features streamline design, which
enhances overall service quality and improves the shopping
experience.

O The characters Mao, Kong, and Tea were featured on four
brightly colored gondola cars gliding above the hills, bringing
a bit of whimsy to the gondola experience.

O To keep people excited about the cars and merchandise
decorated with the Mao, Kong, and Tea characters, TRTC
placed large sculptures of the three characters at the station
on August 5, 2008. Passengers can pose for photos with
their favorite character, giving them a fun souvenir of their
experience. The sculptures also help to extend the reach of
these characters, bringing them out of the gift shop and into
the public area.
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Maokong Gondola Operational
Achievements

The Maokong Gondola, Taipei's first tourist cable car, opened
to the public on July 4, 2007. The system extends over 4.03
kilometers, representing the longest system of suspended cable
cars in Taiwan. (Wulai's cable car route extends 0.38 kilometers,
that at the Formosa Aboriginal Culture Village measures 2
kilometers, and Hualien Ocean Park's is 0.33 kilometers long.)

Soon after beginning operations, the Maokong Gondola became
one the city's most popular tourist destinations. Ridership
reached five million on July 1, 2008, just shy of the one year
anniversary. During the first year of operations (July 4, 2007
through July 4, 2008) a total of 5.07 million trips rode the
Maokong Gondola, an average of 16,000 trips per day. (13,000
trips on weekdays and 21,000 weekends).

From January 2, 2008 to January 13, 2008, TRTC enlisted the
services of an outside firm to perform an independent passenger
satisfaction survey at Maokong Gondola stations. Results showed
that 80.3% of passengers were either satisfied or extremely
satisfied with the overall experience. Following their trips, 94%
of passengers would recommend the gondolas to friends and
family. 84% of passengers said they would like to return to ride
the gondola again.

To provide passengers with even more comfortable, convenient,
and reliable transportation, TRTC performed some facility and

equipment upgrades:

Improved Car Ventilation and Passenger Comfort

To improve ventilation, all 147 cable cars in the fleet had their
undercarriages changed to ventilation slats and window visors
were installed on car doors. In order to completely resolve the
ventilation issue and equip cars for various weather conditions,
the front and back glass windows were also replaced with ones
that can be opened. All upgrades were completed in February
2008, improving the overall passenger experience.

Eliminating Long Lines for the Maokong Gondola

Such a popular destination as the Maokong Gondola was
bound to be plagued with long lines, especially on weekends. To
shorten the wait, beginning on August 2, 2008, TRTC held a trial
run in which passengers took a ticket printed with their ride time
when they entered the station. Instead of an uncomfortable wait
in the sun or rain, passengers can pass the time as they like and
just return to the station at their assigned time. In addition to
improving the experience, this new system funneled customers
to the neighboring shopping area.
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Maokong Gondola Yearly Maintenance

As stipulated in the maintenance manual provided by the system
manufacturer POMA, yearly maintenance was required on
the Maokong Gondola after it accumulated 4,500 operating
hours. The overhaul involved overall system maintenance,
which also included changing the propelling wheels at the two
angle stations. The gondola system was, therefore, closed for
from July 14-21, during which time technicians designated by
POMA provided guidance to TRTC. The Maokong Gondola then
resumed normal operations on July 22. To inform the public
of the closure, we hung posters in all Metro stations and also
advised passengers on Metro passenger information displays.
With the help of the Department of Information and Tourism, the
Taipei City Government, TRTC also relayed information to local
travel agencies.

In September 2008, the Maokong area was hit by two strong
typhoons, Sinlaku and Jangmi. The accompanying rains caused
a landslide that compromised the foundation of the T-16 tower
resulting in closure of the gondola from October 1, 2008. The
city spent four months on geological surveys and planning
and made the decision to move the tower to a neighboring
location with better geological characteristics. We estimate that
the foundation construction will take about 11 months. TRTC
will work closely with the city to complete the job and get the
gondola up and running again as quickly as safety permits.
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Establishing an Operation Model N EEI S EERNEEER
Main Hall Operations Taipei Arena's Main Hall Utilization Rate
The Main Hall is available for rental as a venue for a variety of

events. After the proposed performance schedule is determined,

TRTC sends it over to the Taipei Arena Performance Schedule

Deliberation Committee for final confirmation. Once the

committee makes its decision, the schedule is handed over to

TRTC, which draws up the relevant contracts and implements all

work needed to successfully carry out this schedule. Applications

to the deliberation committee come in three forms: standard

yearly applications, applications to fill empty spots in the

schedule, and applications for public service period scheduling.

The Main Hall then hosts the various performances and activities

scheduled, which include large-scale concerts featuring local and

international artists, cultural performances, sporting events, and

other large-scale meetings and public service events.

Affiliated Business Operations

Affiliated business operations include Ice Land, arena shops,
advertising, and a parking lot. TRTC is responsible for inviting
bids and managing these services under the Regulations @ (ERE Utilized ‘ﬁfﬁf%{m()fumimd for 100 Days

@ FREMAZR Unutilized ‘ RIEFIREL 22 X Unutilized for 22 Days

Governing the Operation of Taipei Mass Rapid Transit Affiliated
Businesses and related laws.

O |Ice Land

Ice Land is an international regulation size ice skating rink

open to the public. With Ice Land, TRTC can offer another

healthy recreational activity to the public, who can enjoy

the rink and skating classes. The facility can also serve as a oo =
L= ;:FU: N\

training ground for outstanding athletes and our national ice eee SN EZXEEE A i / EEXELL

skating and hockey teams. Ratio of Public Service to Commercial Events

O Arena Shops at Taipei Arena

The arena's commercial area currently features 22
independent shop spaces filled through public tender. There
are 13 concession stands on the upper floors designed to be
rented out to event organizers as temporary sales counters.

O Advertising
Commercial advertising in the arena is divided into two
categories:

® One large LED sky screen contracted out and operated by
the chosen advertiser.

® In the Main Hall, there are 23 advertising spaces, which
can be rented out by event organizers.

O Parking Lot

TRTC manages the B1 level of the parking structure, which
features 415 motorcycle spaces open to the public at no
charge. Operation of the B2 level's 476 space automobile

parking lot is contracted out. @ mx TEEIS P EEN G AR 68 K
Commercial Main Hall Commercial Events: 68 Days
® 2% S ATEEEARE 32 K

Public Service

Main Hall Public Service Events: 32 Days

/1
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Operating Achievements

On September 1, 2008, TRTC officially took over operations of
the Taipei Arena, with the goal of attracting more large-scale
cultural performances and sporting events, while also working
with the Taipei City Government to ensure a sufficient proportion
of public service events.

Cultural performances held since TRTC's tenure began include
Jimmy's "Turn Left, Turn Right - The Musical" and concerts
featuring Johnny Jr, Andy Lau, and Aaron Kwok. These events
attracted large crowds, proving that the Taipei Arena can serve
as an important option for area residents looking to enjoy their
leisure time.

In addition to holding a variety of cultural activities, the Taipei
Arena also hosts sporting events and TRTC hopes to raise the
arena's profile by attracting even more. With this goal in mind,
TRTC has offered a variety of discounts such as waiving site
rental fees for public service (sporting) events and only charging
organizers such fees as utilities and cleaning. Since taking over
operations, TRTC has attracted the Taipei City Government
Employee Family Sports Day 2008, the 2nd World Cup Taichi
Championship 2008, The OEC Cup Ladies Tennis Open, the
2008 CKS Cup Figure Skating and Short Track Speed Skating
Championships, and the 2008 Asian Short Track Speed Skating
Development Camp and Competition. We are proud to bring the
people of Taipei a variety of exciting sporting events.

Through the end of December 2008, TRTC had been responsible
for arena operations for 122 days. During that period, the arena
hosted 18 events and was occupied for 100 days, representing
a utilization rate of 81.97%. These events attracted a total of
200,899 attendees. Of the total (including sporting events),
32% were public service events. Ice Land, located in the Sub
Hall, attracted 29,817 skaters over that same period. Under TRTC
management Main Hall utilization rate rose 27.33% over the
54.64% rate achieved during the Eastern Multimedia Group's
tenure. While the Taipei Culture Foundation fared better with a
utilization rate of 71.04%, TRTC still bested them by 10.93%. Our
success shows that through the active promotion of cultural and
public service activities, the Taipei Arena can play an important
role in residents' lives while maintaining its public service role.
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As a mass transit provider, Taipei Metro has a responsibility to
stakeholders: passengers, shareholders, employees, society, and
the environment. We must also continuously work to enhance
company image, thereby increasing our value in the eyes of our
stakeholders.

The development of a rapid transit system can effectively reduce
exhaust emissions by taking cars and motorcycles off the road. To
encourage more people to take public transit, TRTC implemented
discount measures for passengers transferring from the Metro
to buses (and vice versa) and a three month promotion offering
25% off Metro prices for EasyCard users. Beginning on March
1, 2008, TRTC expanded the number of stations allowing
passengers to bring bicycles and reduced the fee to NT$80 to
carry a bicycle on the Metro, making it more convenient and
economical to take part in this healthy recreational activity. At
the same time, TRTC actively worked to meet the goals set out
in the Taipei City Government energy conservation plan for
affiliated organizations and schools, which states that from 2007,
all affiliated organizations and schools should reduce electricity
usage by at least 1% over the previous year, reaching a 5%
reduction by 2011. TRTC then drew up a plan to reduce energy
consumption and carbon production to fulfill our responsibility to
society.

TRTC could not exist without our employees, our most important
resource. To fulfill our responsibility to ensure their well-being,
we have established occupational health and safety programs.
Also, we created a series of training and educational programs to
encourage employees to upgrade and broaden their skills. TRTC
is an equal opportunity employer and is committed to helping
our community by enthusiastically taking part in public services
and community development.
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Green Transportation — Working to Reduce Energy Use and Carbon Emissions

A Sustainable Planet — 25% Discount

With the rise in gas prices, the number of people commuting
by motorcycle has also seen large increases. In order to attract
motorcycle and automobile commuters to take the Metro
and reduce transportation costs for passengers, TRTC offered
25% discounts on fares paid for by EasyCard from June 1
through August 31, 2008. Taking cars and motorcycles off the
streets reduces air pollution and better ensures the physical
and emotional health of Taipei residents. Discounts for Senior,
Charity, and Escort EasyCards were increased from 60% to
62.5% over the same period, during which average daily
ridership increased by 37,957 trips.

Green Transportation — Working Hand in Hand

On January 17, 2004, to encourage residents to use non-
polluting, green modes of transportation and promote healthy
recreational activities, Taipei Metro became the first rapid transit
system in Asia to allow bicycles on its trains. Bicycles were
allowed on weekends and holidays before 4pm entering at 15
select stations along the Danshui, Xindian, and Zhonghe lines.
From July 21, 2007, the hours were extended to include the
period between 7pm and the last train. As newly purchased
trains became operational, the problem of weekend crowding
has been alleviated, enabling TRTC to expand the program. TRTC
added 12 more stations along the Nangang, Bangiao, Tucheng,
and Xiaonanmen Lines that allowed bicycles on weekends and
also reduced the fee to NT$80 (one ticket covering bicycle and
passenger). These new policies give bicycle toting passengers
more flexibility all at a more attractive price. Since bicycles were
permitted on board in 2004, over 140,000 have been brought
on the Taipei Metro. In 2008, a total of 102,279 trips were
transported on the Metro, a more than three-fold increase over
the 25,105 trips carried on the Metro in 2007, a testimony to the
success of our promotion measures.

Committed to Conserving Energy and Carbon
Reduction

Taipei Metro meets its responsibilities to the community through
innovation, cultural promotion, compassion, and environmental
protection. As we grow, our commitment to achieving a
sustainable society and planet only becomes stronger. We
encourage the public to take mass transit and enthusiastically
promote green transportation alternatives to automobiles
and motorcycles. Through the end of 2008, the Taipei Metro
transported a total of 3.4 billion trips who would have otherwise
taken other means of transportation. Taking into account Metro
energy use and that of other means of transportation passengers
rely on to reach Taipei Metro stations, the emission of 105,000
tons of carbon dioxide and the burning of 145,000 liters of
gasoline had been reduced.

Also, Taipei Metro is actively implementing an internal energy
reduction policy to decrease our environmental impact by
adjusting our use of energy intensive equipment such as lighting,
air conditioning systems, elevators, and escalators. According to
the Taipei City Government's energy reduction targets, affiliated
organizations and schools must reduce energy consumption by
1% each year beginning in 2007 for a total of 5% by 2011. In
2008, we reduced energy consumption by 15,210,778 kilowatt
hours, saving NT$30 million on our electricity bill. In addition to
meeting our yearly target, we have already reached the 2009
target of 3% reduction.

::s ANNT) 5 TFEETE 2 EIBEEZ Five-Year Energy Consumption Reduction Targets

FEE Year B4Z Target 82 2006 TR FIEE E &N Electricity Unit Reduction Over 2006 Consumption
2007 -1% -4,187,696
2008 2% -8,375,392
2009 -3% -12,563,088
2010 -4% -16,750,784
2011 -5% -20,938,480

s AN TN ERETRETE I~ B BERN 2K Results of TRTC Internal Energy Consumption Reduction Measures

HEEOEE mmgos  OYARET BERRS
FE Bz (TR ol CTFRLE) EstimateL(; R’éduction Ener 7Eost
Year Target1 Planned Reductions  Actual Reduction %  Actual Reduction in CO. Emmissions 2 RedL?cytion3
f i 2
(Kilowatts Per Hour) (Kilowatts Per Hour) e — itisiserils o )
2007 -1% -4,187,696 -1.09% -4,563,691 -2,907 -10,177
2008 2% -8,375,392 -3.63% -15,210,778 -9,689 -33,920

5E 1 LA 2006 FREE - HREZFRD 1%
5t 2 : BIOHUREL : 0.637 AT &R/ E
H$3:BEBK2237T

Note 1: With 2006 as the Baseline, the Target is a Year on Year Reduction of 1%
Note 2: Based on 0.637 Kilograms of CO, Released Per Unit of Energy
Note 3: Each Unit of Energy Costs NT$2.23

77

Corporate Social Responsibility



| IRABETHEEEE RIS EMAEE

ET B FEREIIR

EEREXZ=RL SRR

AATIKE B TLEFHEEGEEREESEENE] - &

BRFXZ2EEEERM  LEIEFE B 1IL2/EE

BEtE k TE#8EBEE) RES I LZELEEZEEE

FEEER  HRIMFTEEEM - B 2008 FEE T TIER
BEEESER R B ERIIEIFEFRIEACER ©

DIHEXTEZSHRHBER
KB TLE=@EERE  BRIBERE TRIKHET » W
SERBRE » AT B 2002 FIZSEEAMKEE -

B TRE

2008 FFEETEEET TIFREEEEZE 2 AN BXKTX: B
TIT{EREEEEERTEBELFEX 029 AXRBEXRE
EE1LHFEX 1 8 - 198IEFERRELE -

RRIMS TR

RIEEETBIMER » ARTHREBIVEZEE - 2008 FE
IREIVEEBERS 369 AKX : INERE=IREHSENHE
AR#3 (GBEE - 3372 - SIMRELEES) 2315 AN - RiES
TIERR » 2008 EEDHE N BEULSBABE B 75 A
40 R LB ABETS 156 A » BT 84% ° 2008 TFE
ITEENEREE - 5T 1,116 A - O



? Enhancing Employee Value, Creating
“ Fair Employment Opportunities

Caring for Employee Health and Well-Being

Establishing an Occupational Health and Safety  Work Hours Lost to Injury
Management System

Caring for Our Employee Health

Publishing the Frequency of Serious Industrial Safety
Incidents



I58IE - SBTEE

IEES T A - IRARINEE

FEEFTESBR « EZEFR ~ RIEERTFEIER - EER A
R ZEIIRERISIRE 6 38751, ) FET=EERL
EPTRREET] - IEMEBRUMEIT TIEER » ZERIEZEIL AT
BIREIEBE - 2008 FallfRETELETEMNE 1,145 P1HA ~ 3
BRIBANAS 25,472 AR »

Rt ETEFFNERLEEREE  FABFIRATREEE
HlifRCREANS » TEFREBEFETEEERAE
REEREECTEIMRE  UABYEETEEER
g BAATEEEEEFREIERELMTE - 2008 F
PHE 2 BAHTESPEEEFIRR ~ 2 BIAEPEEEIRK
1 BAEEEEEIIR  HBEIFEEE 7T & -

SREFERASREEESIEREE - 2008 FEMEEEEWET
SRS TEREAMBIIE) RFH - BEEME
REZERETZ Ot TTHREMR 19991 ~ 12009 =105
FEERMILSEEE | & 2010 2EALEREHESS ) &M
MEAEFETERESR  ILHSREBHENSEE
EETVREVZERE - FSREETBRAEHEES L ATZ
BEERIER - 2008 FHIE 1 NS EEEWHTE 215
ROPEEEWSE 3 BREBETEHIZ  LRANEE
499 A °

MEREERIEHIIER - HEIRERBESR
RBERRATRCEBRERE 0 BRURTRI-REER-ET
MEHEEFTESEHIL EBEEREE - BEERME > 51
HRFBEIZEE - MEIREIRRIEESE » IR ERE
BIEIEREEE FLUEE) » B EREICHERNITBTEIE
BEZREEHAE > 2008 T3 97 NBSHEIER > WHEMK
10 BB (BESEN -~ =gl - SERIFY - @
5 REEECERS RBIEBREE - HIREERE
BFPUZEME  K@BSRFHEI—F - LA 275
REFRERZBERT » RERCIDEREBEEHE » FR
BiIR LREBREERE - HEBR{CEEREE  UEAEIC
REBRET] » BATBIEEAR -

NEFRE - BIMEE

RARERDRERE  ARFEBMEETIREEE BEHO=S
g~ 50 EEFIIREREGRESZEE  (FRAUE
TR EEE 2 FRERS » WHRMBUNILEBRE RS
i BERRERNILEREFEER - SR1EES
INEBREMERE > QK BN ERSREL] R
E 2008 FELERGNERET 115 N ERALRS
2.89% °

80

EEAEHE



Training Programs

Enhancing Employee Core Capabilities Through
Training

Through a series of training programs that cover a wide
variety of areas including new employees, specialization,
knowledge enhancement, management and academic skills,
labor safety and health, and customer service training, we
can ensure that our employees have all of the skills needed
to succeed at their jobs and achieve our goal of enterprise
human resource management. In 2008, TRTC held a total
of 1,145 training courses, which were attended by 25,472
employees.

In order to enhance the leadership capabilities of company
management, we performed a review of all existing
management training and developed specialized Metro
management training courses to cultivate new executive
talent. Our well equipped leaders assist in company
operations and rise to the challenge in the event of
management succession or changes. In 2008, TRTC held two
courses for new upper-level managers, two courses for new
mid-level managers, and one course for frontline managers,
training a total of 87 managers.

To further enhance the skills of managers at all levels,
TRTC held seminars to educate management on major city
government projects. We invited Mr. Emile C. J. Sheng,
Chairman of the Taipei City Research Development and
Evaluation Commission to discuss the 1999 Citizen Hotline,
Deaflympics Taipei 2009 and the Taipei International Flora
Expo 2010. We also arranged for managers to visit other
organizations to observe their operational models and draw
from their experience to better promote TRTC's operational
goals and vision. In 2008, the company held one high-level,
two mid-level, and three frontline management seminars,
attended by a total of 499 managers.

Promoting an English Learning Environment

TRTC provided avenues for employees to continue their
study of English to improve their language abilities and
broaden their horizons. Financial assistance was provided
to employees who took English courses on their own time.
Employees formed groups and chose an outside training
course suited to their needs and abilities. In 2008, a total of
97 people, as part of 10 English learning groups, received
such assistance. Courses covered a variety of topics including
conversation, General English Proficiency Test preparation,

1222008 FE T Z5/IXRRILLH

Employee Training Courses by Category

1%
1% ;

© S TZLEAE Labor Safety and Health
@ =54 Specialized
08E5N %R Knowledge Enhancement
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Management and Academic

@ ERFEE%R Customer Service

@  FT3ES) R New Employee

and composition. At the same time, TRTC also encouraged
employees to take English proficiency exams, providing a 100%
reimbursement for passing scores or 50% for just taking the
exam. Even with financial assistance, the cost of English lessons
can still be a large burden. In order to give everyone a chance to
improve their English, we also purchased online English courses.
With improved English abilities, TRTC can expand its international
reach.

Providing More Opportunities Through Fair
Employment Practices

To better care for disadvantaged groups, the company and the
Taipei City Department of Labor joined hands to provide shop
spaces in the Guting, Qian, Shandao Temple, and Nanshijiao
Stations to social welfare organizations. Taipei City Hall
Station features an Aboriginal Culture and Economics Center,
which promotes Aboriginal cultural products. To ensure job
opportunities for the physically and mentally disabled, pursuant
to the Physically and Mentally Disabled Citizens Protection Act,
TRTC provided positions to 115 disabled persons, 2.89% of all
hires.
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Enthusiastically Serving Our Community

Devoted to Public Service

Donating Used Computers

The Environmental Protection Administration (EPA) has drawn up
a strategy to shrink the digital divide in Taiwan. In coordination
with this plan, TRTC donated used computers (including 341
computers, 322 monitors, and 15 laptops) as one of the 10
categories of company donations. On December 1, 2008, we
received a medal of gratitude from the EPA.

Volunteer Participation

In 2008, our Metro volunteer team was made up of 289
people who put in 37,953 hours of service. Team members are
responsible for assisting passengers with inquiries, providing
crowd control and support during holiday periods, educating
the public about Metro rules, assisting in emergency situations,
and promoting Metro safety. Following the 2008 Taipei City
Government Volunteer Service Achievement Evaluations, TRTC
received an award commending our appropriate use of our
volunteer team, allowing them to achieve their full potential.

Community Operations

The Fourth Taipei Metro Street Dance Competition

On July 26 — 27 and August 9, TRTC held the preliminary and
semifinal rounds of its annual dance competition in the plaza
behind the Metro Administrative Building. On August 16, the
finals were held in the Taipei City Hsinyi District Mitsukoshi Plaza.
Our spokesman was famous pop idol Alan Luo, who performed
at the competition and served as one of the judges. The
competition featured two divisions, a youth division for
junior high and high school students over the age
of 12 and a young adult division for college
students and young working adults. A
total of 150 teams participated, 35
more than the 115 who took part

in 2007.
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Taipei Metro Exit Music Festival 2008

From December 6 through 27, 2008, TRTC sponsored the Exit
Music Festival, which featured six concerts held at Metro stations.
Each concert had its own theme, ranging from New Age, Jazz,
and Soft Rock to Heavenly Sounds, Classical, and Retro Favorites.
We invited renowned international and local artists to melt away
commuter stress with their beautiful music. The music flowed like
a cool breeze in the night, helping people find their own "exit"
from the rat race.

Metro Safety and Etiquette Promotion
O Metro Love & Caring Care for the Elderly and Youth Concerts

To encourage people to show compassion and concern for
the elderly, TRTC held its Fourth Care for the Elderly Concert
on the night of October 3 in the Shilin Station plaza featuring
renowned local musicians. In addition to filling the air with
the sound of classic favorites, audience at stage 40 or older
were invited to receive free physical checkups and participate
in a prize drawing. Also, on the afternoon of November 8,
TRTC held a youth concert in the Danshui Station plaza. Pop
stars sang and danced on stage, calling on youth to observe
Metro etiquette and help create a clean, exceptional travel en-
vironment.

O Heart of the Metro Movement - Metro Etiquette

To promote understanding of Metro safety and improving
Metro etiquette, TRTC used creative marketing practices
such as interactive games to expand our reach and educate
passengers about escalator safety, elevator and seat etiquette,
and rules against gum, food, and drinks in stations. TRTC
held a comic strip competition from October 22 through
December 15 and a 30-second video competition (with
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both live action and animation categories) from October
22 through December 22. The activities were greeted with
great enthusiasm from the public and attracted gifted artists
who showed off their talent. We received over 2,000 entries
overall, a truly impressive response. On January 19, 2009,
TRTC held an awards ceremony on the basement level of the
Taipei Main Station in front of the EasyCard Service Center
to recognize outstanding entries. Open to all, competition
entries taught the public about our Metro Culture and helped
create a safer, higher quality transportation environment.

We received a total of 2,215 entries in the comic strip
competition, a 12-fold increase over the 168 entries received
last year. In the video competition, there were 247 animated
and 187 live action videos submitted, for a total of 434
entries, which represents 23 times the scant 18 entries
received in 2007.
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Following the addition of the Neihu Line in 2009, the Taipei
Metro network will continue to expand into 2010 and beyond
with the new Nangang Eastern Extension and Xinzhuang
Luzhou, Xinyi, and Songshan Lines. For Taipei Metro, these
next few years represent a period of large-scale expansion. We
continue to provide passengers with ever safer and more reliable,
comfortable, and convenient high-quality transportation services
on our existing lines through such improvements as adding
on-board announcements to include which doors will open,
improving the real-time station video monitoring system, and
performing noise abatement construction along elevated track.
However, in this period of growth, we must also keep careful
control over the facilities and equipment to be used on these
future Metro line additions to ensure we can maintain our level of
quality and service on these new lines as well. With the addition
of the Neihu Line in 2009, the total length of track will increase
by about 14.8 kilometers and we will add 12 new stations to our
network. We estimate that the entire Metro system will transport
upwards of 1.4 million trips daily, increasing the utilization rate of
mass transit in the Taipei metropolitan area. A larger network will
bring us within reach of more citizens and allow us to better serve
our community.

TRTC is not satisfied simply to be a provider of mass transit
services. Simply stated, Taipei Metro is not just a metro; instead,
we want to enhance the lives of all citizens and play an important
role beyond the daily commute. Therefore, during this age of
rising oil prices, we are at the forefront of green business practices
as we allow passengers to bring their bicycles aboard Taipei
Metro and thereby promote healthy leisure activities. As cultural
and sporting events are held at the Taipei Arena, we can attract
large crowds and provide residents with a variety of exceptional
choices for recreation. The Maokong Gondola, operated by TRTC,
combines transportation with tourism to give people a new,
refreshing experience. TRTC is a shareholder in the EasyCard
Corporation, which can now serve not just as a Metro ticket, but
as a stored value card valid at many retail locations following the
passage of the Electronic Ticket Issuance and Management Act.
Not only does EasyCard make life more convenient, it brings TRTC
into additional aspects of people's everyday lives.

As we gaze towards the future, we are progressively accumulating
experience operating lifestyle businesses. Combined with our
years of experience providing Metro services, TRTC has become
a diversified corporation that offers a wide variety of high-
quality goods and services to our customers. We will continue to
work together with the Taipei City Government to make Taipei a
healthy international city and let its citizens know the joy of living
in a sustainable environment.

O
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For the convenience of readers and for information purpose only, the auditors' report and the
accompanying financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. In the event of any discrepancy between
the English version and the original Chinese version or any differences in the interpretation of
the two versions, the Chinese-language auditors' report and financial statements shall prevail.

Report of Independent Accountants Translated from Chinese
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation as of December 31,
2008 and 2007, and the related statements of income, of changes in stockholders' equity, and of cash flows for
the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the
2008 and 2007 financial statements of EasyCard Corporation (formerly Taipei Smart Card Corporation) and
Metro Taipei Consulting Service Ltd., long-term investments accounted for under the equity method. These
long-term investments amounted to $126,540,000 and $154,016,000 as of December 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively, and the related investment income was $1,665,000 and $26,613,000 for the years then ended,
respectively. The financial statements of these investee companies were audited by other auditors, whose
reports thereon have been furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts
included for EasyCard Corporation and Metro Taipei Consulting Service Ltd., is based solely on the reports of
the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the "Rules Governing the Examination of Financial Statements
by Certified Public Accountants" and generally accepted auditing standards in the Republic of China. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits and the reports of the other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of the other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Taipei Rapid Transit Corporation as of
December 31, 2008 and 2007, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in
conformity with the Business Entity Accounting Law, Regulation on Business Entity Accounting Handling
and generally accepted accounting principles in the Republic of China.

The 2007 financial statements were also examined by the Taipei Municipality Audit Division. Please refer to
Note 20.

March 30, 2009

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and
jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of
China governing the audit of such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries
and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China. Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements
and report of independent accountants are not intended for use by those who are not informed about the
accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, and their applications
in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept
any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that
may derive from the translation.
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TAIPEI RAPID TR ANSIT CORPOR ATION BALANCE SHEETS DECEMBER 31,

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars; the 2007 balances were examined by the Taipei Municipality
Audit Division)

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash (Note 4) $ 1,093,191 8 $ 1,386,284 10
(l?zlfzileals);e-for-sale financial assets-current 2,653,360 19 2,383.495 18
&e(l)f:g;mamrity financial assets-current 240,144 5 550,961 4
Receivables (Note 18)
Accounts receivable-net 77,212 1 56,945 -
Other receivables 115,472 1 65,831 1
Inventories-net (Note 7) 1,712,602 12 1,638,163 12
Prepayments 198,440 1 176,176 1
6,090,421 44 6,257,855 46
Funds, Investments and Long-term
Receivables
i‘iﬁﬁ?{ﬁiﬁ‘f&y financial assets-non- 1,668,162 12 1,307,878 10
g s s
1,794,702 13 1,461,894 11
Fixed Assets (Note 9)
Buildings and improvements 29,339 - 30,516 -
Machinery and equipment 409,020 3 438,173 3
Transportation equipment 4,002,259 29 3,796,377 28
Miscellaneous equipment 69,063 1 58,344 1
Leasehold improvements 1,059,513 8 1,014,158 8
Construction in progress and prepayments 145,607 1 135,031 1
5,714,801 42 5,472,599 41
Intangible Assets (Notes 10 and 14) 114,346 1 213,235 2
Other Assets
Miscellaneous assets (Note 11) 1,908 - 1,620 -
Deferred assets (Notes 12 and 16) 24,352 - 27,002 -
26,260 - 28,622 -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 13,740,530 100 $ 13,434,205 100
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LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 17,259 - $ 26,474 -
Income tax payable (Note 16) 92,849 1 82,139 -
Accrued expenses (Notes 13 and 18) 1,227,118 9 1,172,332 9
Other payables 96,457 1 108,569 1
Receipts under custody (Note 18) 157,644 1 115,608 1

1,591,327 12 1,505,122 11
Unearned revenue (Note 18) 445,818 3 462,414 4

2,037,145 15 1,967,536 15

Long-term Liability

Accrued pension liability (Note 14) 51,289 - 116,699 1
51,289 - 116,699 1
1

Other Liabilities
Miscellaneous liabilities Deposits in 318,764 3 260,845 2
Other liabilities-others 36,612 - 28,964 -
355,376 3 289,809 2
Total liabilities 2,443,810 18 2,374,044 18

Stockholders' equity
Common stock 9,354,100 68 9,354,100 70

Retained earnings (Note 15)

Appropriated retained earnings 736,179 5 664,081 5
Unappropriated retained earnings 1,205,913 9 995,330 7
Unrealized gain or loss on financial assets 598 ) 46,650 )
(Note 5)
Total stockholders' equity 11,296,720 82 11,060,161 82
Commitments and Contingencies (Note 19)
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 13,740,530 100 $ 13,434,205 100

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
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TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPORATION STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars; the 2007 balances were examined by the Taipei Municipality
Audit Division)

Operating revenues
Fare revenues $ 9,713,637 89 $§ 9,124,631 88
Other operating revenues (Note 18) 1,197,002 11 1,268,828 12
10,910,639 100 10,393,459 100
Operating costs (Notes 17 and 18)
Transportation costs ( 7,826,755) ( 72) ( 7,395,279) ( 71)
Other operating costs ( 496,480) ( 4) ( 339,272) ( 4)
( 8,323,235) ( 76) ( 7,734,551) ( 75)
Gross profit 2,587,404 24 2,658,908 25
Operating expenses (Notes 17 and 18)
Selling ( 1,006,063) ( 9) ( 930,501) ( 9)
Operating outlay ( 628,191) ( 6) ( 604,383) ( 6)
Administrative ( 435,066) ( 4) ( 431,540) ( 4)
Other operating expenses ( 115,309) ( 1) ( 106,353) ( 1)
( 2,184,629) ( 20) ( 2,072,777) ( 20)
Operating income 402,775 4 586,131 5
Non-operating income
Financial income
Interest income 80,118 1 86,882 1
It ncome ecouned s oo -
Dividend income 1,777 - 2,300 -
Rental revenue 46,335 - 34,809 -
Gain on disposal of assets 26,966 - 35,087 1
Exchange gain - - 639 -
Other non-operating income (Note 18) 160,816 2 97,009 1
Total non-operating income 317,677 3 283,339 3
Non-operating expenses
Financial expense
Interest expense ( 137) = 106) -
Exchange loss ( 936) - - -
Provision for inventory obsolescence  ( 4,304) - - -
Other non-operating expense ( 7,508) = 12,821) =
Total non-operating expenses ( 12,885) = ( 12,927) -
Income before income tax 707,567 7 856,543 8
Income tax expense(Notel6) ( 100,298) ( 1) ( 135,556) ( 1)
Net income $ 607,269 6 §$ 720,987 7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
See PricewaterhouseCoopers' audit report dated March 30, 2009.
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TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPORATION STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN
STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars; the 2007 balances were examined by the Taipei Municipality
Audit Division)

Retained Earnings

Appropriated Unappropriated Unrealized

Common Stock  Retained Retained Gain or Loss on
Earnings Earnings Financial Assets

Balance at January 1, 2007 $ 9,354,100 $ 585,146 $ 850916 $ 69,578 $ 10,859,740

Appropriations of 2006 net

income:
Legal reserve = 78,935  ( 78,935) - -
Cash dividends = . ( 497,638) - ( 497,638)
Net income for 2007 - - 720,987 - 720,987
Unrealized loss on available- i i i ( 22,864) ( 22,864)

for-sale financial assets

Proportional adjustments

for 1nv§stee companies i i i ( 64)  ( 64)
unrealized loss on available-

for-sale financial assets

Balance at December 31, 9,354,100 664,081 995,330 46,650 11,060,161

2007

Appropriations of 2007 net

income:

Legal reserve = 72,098 ( 72,098) = =

Cash dividends - - ( 324,588) - ( 324,588)
Net income for 2008 - - 607,269 - 607,269

Unrealized loss on available- i i i ( 17,521) ( 17,521)

for-sale financial assets

Proportional adjustments

for investee companies' (
unrealized loss on available-
for-sale financial assets

28,601) ( 28,601)

Balance at December 31, 2008 $§ 9,354,100 $§ 736,179 $§ 1,205913 $ 528 $ 11,296,720

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
See PricewaterhouseCoopers' audit report dated March 30, 2009.
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TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPOR ATION STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars; the 2007 balances were examined by the Taipei Municipality

Audit Division)

2008
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 607,269 720,987
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Provision for bad debts - 2,204
Provision for reserve 5,341 201,906)
Depreciation and depletion 484,633 451,116
Amortization 42,091 53,404
Reversal of deferred liabilities ( 982) 618)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets ( 24,340) 31,306)
Other ( 2,142) 23,938)
Net (increase) decrease in current assets ( 170,916) 176,555
Net increase (decrease) in current liabilities 69,610 215,619)
Net change in deferred income tax assets ( 621) 44 469
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,009,943 975,348
Cash flows from investing activities:
Net decrease in available-for-sale financial assets 289,717 1,426,766
Net increase in intangible assets and other assets ( 6,349) 10,964)
Decrease in fixed assets and deferred assets 421 -
Cash provided by other investing activities 540 382
Increase in funds and long-term receivables ( 599,921) 376,682)
Increase in fixed assets and deferred assets ( 726,304) 1,044,098)
Net cash used in investing activities ( 1,041,896) 4,596)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in other liabilities 63,448 46,917
Payment of cash dividends ( 324,588) 497,646)
Net cash used in financing activities ( 261,140) 450,729)
Net (decrease) increase in cash ( 293,093) 520,023
Cash at beginning of year 1,386,284 866,261
Cash at end of year $ 1,093,191 1,386,284
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for:
Interest $ 137 106
Income tax $ 90,210 139,468
Investing activities with partial cash payment
Acquisition of fixed assets and deferred assets $ 729,404 1,045,978
Less: payables on fixed assets at end of year - -
donated assets ( 3,100) 1,880)
Add: payables on fixed assets at beginning of year - -
Cash paid $ 726,304 1,044,098

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
See PricewaterhouseCoopers' audit report dated March 30, 2009.
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TAIPEI RAPID TRANSIT CORPORATION NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2008 AND 2007

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan dollars, except as otherwise indicated; the 2007 balances were examined by the
Taipei Municipality Audit Division)

The Company was incorporated in the Republic of China ("ROC") as a company limited by shares on July 27,
1994. The Company's registered and issued capital at December 31, 2008 amounted to $9,354,100. The major
business activities of the Company include the provision of public rapid transit services, public rapid transit business
consulting service, sales of general merchandise, advertising, and the leasing of signboards and parking lots. Major
operating properties of the Company are leased from the Taipei City Government and the lease term covering the
period from March 2001 to December 2010.

The Taipei City Government owns 73.75% of the Company's outstanding shares.
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company had 3,835 and 3,543 employees, respectively.

As a government operated enterprise, accounting and financial statements are prepared in accordance with the
laws and regulations issued by the government. The accounts are subject to annual examinations by the Taipei
Municipality Audit Division (TMAD), Department of Audit. Matters not provided therein shall be treated in
accordance with the Business Entity Accounting Law, Regulation on Business Entity Accounting Handling and
accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of China. The summary of significant accounting policies
is as follows:

1) Criteria for classifying assets and liabilities as current or non-current items

A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; otherwise they are
classified as non-current assets:

(1) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realized or consumed, or are intended to be
sold within the normal operating cycle;

(2) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;
(3) Assets that are expected to be realized within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(4) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are to be exchanged
or used to pay off liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet date.

B. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; otherwise they are
classified as non-current liabilities:

(1) Liabilities arising from operating activities that are expected to be paid off within the normal operating cycle;
(2) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;

(3) Liabilities that are to be paid off within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(

4) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than twelve months
after the balance sheet date.

2) Foreign currency transactions

(1) The Company maintains its accounts in New Taiwan dollars. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into New Taiwan dollars at the spot exchange rates prevailing at the transaction dates.

(2) Receivables, other monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the spot
exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss.

3) Available-for-sale financial assets

(1) Available-for-sale financial assets are recognized using trade date accounting and are initially stated at fair value
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

(2) The financial assets are remeasured and stated at fair value, and the gain or loss is recognized in equity, until the
financial asset is derecognized, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in equity shall be
recognized in profit or loss. The fair values of listed stocks, OTC stocks and closed-end mutual funds are based
on latest quoted fair prices of the accounting period. The fair values of open-end and balanced mutual funds are
based on the net asset value at the balance sheet date.

(3) If there is any objective evidence that the financial asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognized
directly in equity shall be transferred from equity to profit or loss. When the fair value of an equity instrument
subsequently increases, impairment losses recognized previously in profit or loss shall not be reversed. When
the fair value of a debt instrument subsequently increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss shall be reversed to the

extent of the loss recognized in profit or loss.
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4) Held-to-maturity financial assets

(1) Held-to-maturity financial asset is recognized or derecognized using trade date accounting and is stated
initially at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

(2) The financial assets are carried at amortized cost.

(3) If there is any objective evidence that the financial asset is impaired, the impairment loss is recognized
in profit or loss. If the fair value of the financial asset subsequently increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the
impairment loss shall be reversed to the extent of the loss previously recognized in profit or loss.

5) Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable represent claims resulting from the sale of goods or services. The fair value of accounts
receivable shall be calculated based on the imputed interest rate. Accounts receivable which are collectible
within one year, where the difference between the fair value and the value at maturity is insignificant and
trading is also frequent, need not be measured at fair value.

6) Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided based on an evaluation of the collectibility and aging analysis
of notes and accounts receivable at the balance sheet date.

7) Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost, which is determined using the moving-average method. After providing
for inventory obsolescence on slow-moving items, ending inventories other than slow-moving items are
valued at the lower of cost or market value using the aggregate value method. Market value of inventories is
determined using the replacement cost.

8) Long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity method

Long-term equity investments in which the Company holds more than 20% of the investee company's voting
shares or has the ability to exercise significant influence on the investee's operations are accounted for under
the equity method.

9) Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated at cost. Interest incurred during the construction or installation of the assets is
capitalized. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expensed when incurred; major additions, renewals and
improvements are capitalized and depreciated accordingly.

Capital leases are capitalized at the present value of all payments and lease obligations payable thereon.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated minimum useful lives of the
assets regulated by Directorate General of Budget, Accounting and Statistics, Executive Yuan, R.O.C.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated based on the shorter of the lease term or the estimated useful lives.
The estimated useful lives are 2-25 years for the major fixed assets, except for buildings which is 30 years.
Gain or loss on disposal of fixed assets is recognized as non-operating income or loss.

10) Intangible assets

The cost of computer software is capitalized and amortized under the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets.

11) Revenue, cost and expense recognition

Fare revenues are recognized when service has been provided. Advertising revenues from stations and
carriages are recognized in accordance with the terms of the contracts. Rental revenues from MRT station
shops, underground shopping malls, and base for mobile phone facilities are accounted for in accordance
with the terms of the leases. Costs and expenses are recognized as incurred. In accordance with the
financial statements examined by the Taipei Municipality Audit Division, revenues and costs related to the
Maokong Gondola and the Taipei Arena commissioned by the Taipei City Government are expressed at
gross amount.
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12) Provision for pension and severance liabilities

Under the defined benefit pension plan, net periodic pension costs are recognized in accordance with the
actuarial calculations. Net periodic pension costs include service cost, interest cost, expected return on
plan assets, and amortization of unrecognized net transition obligation and gains or losses on plan assets.
Unrecognized net transition obligation is amortized on a straight-line basis over 22 years. Under the
defined contribution pension plan, net periodic pension costs are recognized as incurred.

13) Income tax

(1) The Company adopted R.O.C. SFAS No. 22, "Accounting for Income Tax", whereby deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recorded under the asset and liability method with respect to temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward and income tax credits. A valuation allowance is
then provided for deferred tax assets to the extent that it is more likely than not that the tax benefits
will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are divided into current or non-current according
to the classification of the related liability or asset or based on the expected length of time before it is
recovered.

(2) In accordance with R.O.C. SFAS No. 12, "Accounting for Investment Tax Credits", investment
tax credits resulting from the expenditures for acquisition of machinery or technology, research and
development, and employee trainings are recognized as incurred.

(3) Over or under provision of prior years' income tax liabilities are included in current year's income tax
expense.

(4) An additional 10% corporate income tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings from
January 1, 1998. The income tax expense is recognized after the closing of the annual stockholders'
meeting.

(5) The Company adopted the "Income Basic Tax Act". If the amount of basic tax is more than the amount
of regular income tax, the difference is recognized as additional income tax in the current year.

14) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

15) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company recognizes impairment loss when there is indication that the recoverable amount of an asset
is less than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. The fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of the asset in an arm's
length transaction after deducting any direct incremental disposal costs. The value in use is the present
value of estimated future cash flows to be derived from continuing use of the asset and from its disposal at
the end of its useful life.

When the impairment no longer exists, the impairment loss recognized in prior years shall be recovered.

16) Employees' bonuses and directors' and supervisors' remuneration

Effective January 1, 2008, pursuant to EITF 96-052 of the Accounting Research and Development
Foundation, R.O.C., dated March 16, 2007, "Accounting for Employees' Bonuses and Directors' and
Supervisors' Remuneration", the costs of employees' bonuses and directors' and supervisors' remuneration
are accounted for as expenses and liabilities, provided that such recognition is required under legal or
constructive obligation and the amounts can be estimated reasonably. However, if the accrued amounts for
employees' bonuses and directors' and supervisors' remuneration are significantly different from the actual
distributed amounts resolved by the stockholders at their annual stockholders' meeting subsequently, the
differences shall be recognized as gain or loss in the following year.

Employees' bonuses and directors' and supervisors' remuneration

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted EITF 96-052 of the Accounting Research and
Development Foundation, R.O.C., dated March 16, 2007. The adoption of EITF 96-052 had no effect on
the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008.
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4. CASH

Petty cash, checking accounts and demand deposits 103,191 216,284
Time deposits 990,000 1,170,000
$ 1,093,191 $ 1,386,284

5. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE OFINANCIAL ASSETS-CURRENT

December 31,2008 December 31,2007

Beneficiary certificates $ 2,596,466 $ 2,309,080
Listed stocks 46,717 46,717
2,643,183 2,355,797

Unrealized gain or loss on financial assets 10,177 27,698
$ 2,653,360 $ 2,383,495

The unrealized gain or loss on financial assets of $528 is comprised of the Company's unrealized loss on
available-for-sale financial assets of $10,177 and proportional adjustments for investee companies' unrealized
loss on available-for-sale financial assets of $9,649.

6. HELD-TO-MATURITY FINANCIAL ASSETS

Current:
Government bonds $ - $ 50,686
Corporate bonds 240,144 500,275
240,144 550,961
Non-current:
Corporate bonds 1,668,162 1,307,878
$ 1,908,306 $ 1,858,839

7. INVENTORIES-NET

Materials and fuel 1,748,423 1,667,234
Materials in transit 3,948 6,874
Merchandise 4,065 3,585
1,756,436 1,677,693

Less: Allowance for inventory obsolescence ( 43.834) ( 39,530)
$ 1,712,602 $ 1,638,163

8. LONG-TERM EQUITY INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR THE EQUITY
METHOD

December 31,2008 December 31, 2007
Investments Amount percentag(_e i Amount percentagt.e i
Ownership Ownership
EasyCard Corporation (formerly o o
Taipei Smart Card Corporation) $ L1k A0 2 e $ ks, A
Metro Taipei Consulting Service Ltd. 3 o
(MTCS) 10,336 20% 10,646 20%
$ 126,540 $ 154,016

The investment income recognized based on the financial statements audited by other auditors for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 was $1,665 and $26,613, respectively.
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9. FIXED ASSETS-NET
1) Fixed assets

Buildings and improvements $ 36,484 ($ 7,145) $ 29,339
Machinery and equipment 1,182,702 ( 773,682) 409,020
Transportation equipment 4,446,385 ( 444,126) 4,002,259
Miscellaneous equipment 161,155 ( 92,092) 69,063
Leasehold improvements 1,903,703 ( 844,190) 1,059,513
Construction in progress and. - 145,607 i 145,607
prepayments for business facilities

7,876,036 ($ 2,161,235) $ 5,714,801

Buildings and improvements $ 36,484  ($ 5,968) $ 30,516
Machinery and equipment 1,111,237 ( 673,064) 438,173
Transportation equipment 4,071,165 ( 274,788) 3,796,377
Miscellaneous equipment 136,340 ( 77,996) 58,344
Leasehold improvements 1,711,466 ( 697,288) 1,014,158
grzgit;;cetﬁg flcr)lr%:.(l)s%fleesss s a%;lgilities I 0B . L DEiL

$ 7,201,703 ($ 1,729,104) $ 5,472,599

2) In 2008 and 2007, the leasehold improvements pertain to MRT stations and the related
construction of Taipei Metropolitan Rapid Transit Systems (TMRTS) leased from the Taipei City
Government.

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

s December 31,2008 December 31, 2007

Computer software cost 71,077 103,518
Deferred pension cost 43,269 109,717
$ 114,346 $ 213,235

The Company purchased computer software for the ERP system in 2005. The cost is amortized under a
straight-line basis over 5 years.

11. MISCELLANEOUS ASSETS

_ December 31,2008 December 31,2007

Call receivables-net

Deposits 1,455 1,311
Others 453 309
$ 1,908 $ 1,620

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, Call receivables in the amount of $28,618 was fully provided with
allowance.

12. DEFERRED ASSETS

_ December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Other deferred expense 3,272 6,543
Deferred income tax assets 21,080 20,459
$ 24,352 $ 27,002
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13. ACCRUED EXPENSES

_ December 31,2008 December 31,2007

Accrued salary and bonus $ 709,005 $ 671,264

Accrued rental expense 38,277 37,643

Accrued double-way fare

passenger between Metzo and 1223 87,672

bus

Accrued utilities expenses 95,868 71,289

Other accrued expenses 292,740 304,464
$ 1,227,118 $ 1,172,332

14. RETIREMENT PLAN

1) The Company has a non-contributory and funded defined benefit pension plan in accordance
with the Labor Standards Law, covering all regular employees. Under the defined benefit
plan, two units are accrued for each year of service for the first 15 years and one unit for each
additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are based on the
number of units accrued and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last 6 months prior
to retirement. The Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 11.8% and 11.38% in
2008 and 2007, respectively of the employees' monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund
deposited with Bank of Taiwan, the trustee.

2) The related actuarial assumptions used to calculate the net periodic pension cost and pension
obligation on the measurement dates as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:

Discount rate 2.75% 3.50%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 1.50% 2.50%
Future salary increase rate 2.24% 2.29%

3) Pension-related assets and obligations are as follows:

Benefit obligations:

Vested benefit obligation ($ 115,073) ($ 98,563)
Non-vested benefit obligation ( 1,419,022) ( 1,298,134)
Accumulated benefit obligation ( 1,534,095) ( 1,396,697)
Additional benefits based on future salaries ( 798,489) ( 648,961)
Projected benefit obligation ( 2,332,584) ( 2,045,658)
Plan assets at fair value 1,482,921 1,279,998
Funded status ( 849,663)  ( 765,660)
Unrecognized net transition obligation 223,977 234,158
Unrecognized loss on pension plan 608,016 514,387
Unrecognized prior service cost 9,650 10,133
Additional liability ( 43,269) ( 109,717)
Reserve for pension ($ 51,289) ($ 116,699)
Vested benefit ($ 135927)  (§ 117,301)
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4) Net periodic pension costs for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as follows:

For the years ended December For the years ended December
31,2008 31,2007

Service cost $ 139,252 $ 130,691
Interest cost 71,438 62,819
Expected return on plan assets ( 34,318) ( 24.209)
R e
Amortization of prior service cost 482 482
Amortization of loss on plan assets 14,753 13,505
Net pension cost $ 201,788 $ 193,469

5) Effective July 1, 2005, the Company established a defined contribution pension plan (the '"New
Plan") under the Labor Pension Act. Participants under the old plan have the option to be
covered under the New Plan. Under the New Plan, the Company contributes monthly an amount
based on 6% of the employees' monthly salaries and wages to the employees'individual pension
accounts at the Bureau of Labor Insurance. The benefits accrued are portable upon termination
of employment. The net pension cost recognized under the defined contribution plan for the
years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to $34,182 and $27,627, respectively.

15. RETAINED EARNINGS

Under the Company's Articles of Incorporation, the current year's earnings after paying all taxes,
offsetting prior years' operating losses and setting aside 10% legal reserve, if any, shall be allocated based
on the proposal of the board of directors following a resolution approved by the Company's shareholders.

Pursuant to the ROC Company Law, the legal reserve must be used exclusively to offset losses and can
not be used for any other purpose, except that one-half of the legal reserve may be capitalized based on a
resolution at the stockholders'meeting when the legal reserve equals at least 50% of paid-in capital.

As approved at the stockholders'meeting held in 2008 and 2007, the Company issued $0.347 and $0.532
cash dividends per share, respectively.

The Taiwan imputation tax system requires that any undistributed current earnings, of a company derived
on or after January 1, 1998 be subject to an additional 10% corporate income tax if the earnings are not
distributed in the following year. This 10% additional tax on undistributed earnings paid by the Company
may be used as tax credit by the foreign stockholders against the withholding tax on dividends. In
addition, the individual domestic shareholders can claim a proportionate share in the Company's corporate
income tax, including the 10% additional tax, as tax credit against their individual income tax liability
effective 1998.

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company's undistributed earnings and imputation tax credit
account balance were as follows:

Undistributed earnings
-had been assessed with a 10% income tax $ 598,644 $ 274,343
-had not been assessed with a 10% income tax 607,269 720,987
$ 1,205913 § 995,330
Imputation tax credit $ 110,515 § 88,121
Creditable tax ratio Iééés(t’/iog?etg (thuz:f;

The actual creditable tax ratio should be calculated based on the imputation tax credit account balance on
dividend distribution date. As a result, the tax credit stockholders can claim when they received the 2008
earnings distribution should be recorded according to the Income Tax Law until the dividend distribution
date.

Note: This estimated creditable tax ratio was calculated based on the balance of imputation tax credit
account and income tax payable as of December 31, 2008.
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16. INCOME TAX

1) Income tax expense and income tax payable are as follows:

Income before income tax at statutory tax rate $ 176,882 $ 214,126
Tax effect of permanent differences ( 9,666) ( 11,277)
Under provision of prior year's income tax - 49
Tax effect of investment tax credits ( 100,134) ( 89,829)
Income tax on separately taxed income 786 1,210
ig:ﬁiirlllgcsome tax on prior year's undistributed 32.430 21,277
Income tax expense 100,298 135,556
Net changes of deferred income tax assets 621 ( 44 .469)
Under provision of prior year's income tax - ( 49)
Prepaid and withholding of income tax ( 7,284) ( 7,689)
Income tax on separately taxed income ( 786) ( 1,210)
Income tax payable $ 92,849 $ 82,139

2) Deferred tax assets are as follows:

Deferred income tax assets-non-current-net 21,080 $ 20,459

3) The details of temporary differences resulting in deferred income tax assets are as follows:

December 31,2008 December 31, 2007
Amount Tax Effect Amount Tax Effect

Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 27,560 $ 6,890 $ 27,762 $ 6,941
E{)‘S’(‘)’;ZIS‘;’;;S; inventory 43,834 10,958 39,530 9,882
Unrealized investment loss 12,931 3,232 14,596 3,649
Pension liability - - 2 1
Others ( 2) - ( 54) ( 14)
$ 84,323 $ 21,080 $ 81,836 $ 20,459

4) The Company's income tax returns through 2006 have been approved by the Tax Authority.

17. PERSONNEL, DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

2008
Operating costs Operating expenses Total

Personnel expenses

Salaries $ 2,180,493 $ 563,028 $ 2,743,521
Labor and health insurances 146,500 35,578 182,078
Pension and retirement 187,349 48,668 236,017
Others 97,627 46,803 144,430
Depreciation 418,307 66,326 484,633
Amortization 7 41,768 41,775
$ 3,030,283 $ 802,171 $ 3,832,454
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2007

Operating costs Operating expenses Total

Personnel expenses
Salaries $ 2,064,561 $ 544,632 $ 2,609,193
Labor and health insurances 140,560 31,355 171,915
Pension and retirement 175,407 47,655 223,062
Others 91,738 48,606 140,344
Depreciation 374,845 76,271 451,116
Amortization 4 44,153 44,157
$ 2,847,115 $ 792,672 $ 3,639,787

18. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

1) Names and relationship of major related parties

Name of Related Party Relationship

Taipei City Government (TCG) Majority stockholder

EasyCard Corporation (formerly Taipei Smart Card Tiroieias aeammiin for ks e gty mefand

Corporation)
Metro Taipei Consulting Service Ltd. (MTCS) Investee accounted for under the equity method
Metropolitan Transport Corporation (MTC) Investee of TCG

2) Summary of significant transactions and balances with related parties

A. Property lease

The Company entered into an agreement with the Taipei City Government to lease properties of the
Taipei Metropolitan Rapid Transit Systems (TMRTS) in October 2001. The lease term is from March
2001 to December 31, 2010. The rental expense was $2,021,109 from March to December 31, 2001.
For the remaining periods, the rental expense is $2,030,000, plus 4% of operating income of each year,
payable in June and December. In 2008 and 2007, the rental expense was $2,448,905 and $2,434,976,
respectively, which were recorded as "Transportation cost" and "Other operating costs". As of December
31, 2008 and 2007, the rental expense payable was $38,277 and $37,643, which were paid in January
2009 and 2008, respectively.

B. Taipei IC Card Integration Business Agreement (the Agreement)

In compliance with the Taipei IC Card Integration Project of the Taipei City Government, the
Company signed a contract with EasyCard Corp. for the manufacture and issuance of tickets, data
processing, and cash disbursements. The major transactions under the Agreement are as follows:

(1) Other operating revenue:

2008 2007

% of operating % of operating
income income

Commissions from

sales of Easy Cards $ 46,759 : $ 39,579 8
I.{enta.l revenue for lease of site for 1,728 ) 1655 )
ticketing machine

$ 48,487 -8 41,225 )

(2) Operating expense

2008 2007
% of operating % of operating
AL income S income
Operating outlay:
Handling charges for Easy Cards  $ 163,607 197 $ 150,403 1.94
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(3) Unearned revenue

In accordance with the Agreement, EasyCard Corp. deposits a certain percentage of advance receipts
of Easy Cards with the Company. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the advance receipts were
$241,226 and $222,184, respectively, listed under the unearned revenue account. In November 2007,
the Company has extended the Agreement with EasyCard Corp. to December 2010, and EasyCard
Corp. paid royalty fee of Easy Cards amounting to $179,080 (including business tax) to the Company.
As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the advance receipts were $110,629 and $165,943, respectively, listed
under the unearned revenue account. In 2008 and 2007, the royalty revenue was $55,314 and $4,610,
respectively, which was recorded as "Other non-operating income".

(4) The balances resulting from the above transactions are as follows:

_ December 31, 2008 December 31, 2007

Accounts receivable $ 20, 071 2599 § 17,646 30.99
Unearned revenue $ 351,855 78.92 § 388,127 83.93

The payment terms for related parties are as follows: Payments for purchases of Easy Cards (recorded
as "Other payables") net of commissions are due 10 days after purchase. The handling charges for Easy
Cards and rental revenue are due in the following month.

C. Fare discount expense for passenger using MRT and public busesThe Company incurred
promotion expenses (charged to "Selling expenses'") to MTC for fare discount to passengers
using MRT and public buses in the amount of $88,019 and $79,397 in 2008 and 2007,
respectively. As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the unpaid expenses (recorded as "Accrued
expenses'') were $14,377 and $14,347, respectively.

D. Receivables/other receivables/receipts on hand

As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, the Company was engaged to handle certain business activities for the
Department of Transportation, TCG, Department of Social Welfare, TCG, Department of Finance, TCG,
and Department of Rapid Transit Systems, TCG. The related account balances (subsidies for tickets for
senior citizens and handicapped and reimbursement for purchases of equipment, etc.) are as follows:

Receivables for senior citizens and handicapped tickets $ 17,128 $ 12,424
Advance receipts for construction of facilities $ 141,230 $ 87,125
Other receivables for construction of facilities $ 38,406 $ 15,063
Temporary credit (recorded as "Other payables") $ 107 $ 11,877

E. Maokong Gondola Mandatory Management Contact

In order to promote the quality of recreation in Maokong, improve the traffic control, and maintain the
service quality of the Maokong Gondola, Taipei City Government (TCG) entered into a management
contract with the Company and appointed the Company to operate the Maokong Gondola in
accordance with the Taipei Gondola Transport Business Policing Method and related regulations in
December 2006. The operation of the Maokong Gondola started on July 4, 2007.

In accordance with the contract, the Company should provide TCG with the financial statements
for Maokong Gondola operations within six months after the end of a fiscal year. The current year's
earnings, if any, shall first be offset against prior year's operating losses and then 20% of the remaining
amount shall be set aside as the Company's performance bonus for management efficiency. The
remaining amount shall be returned to TCG. Losses, if any, shall be reimbursed to the Company by the
TCG. The Maokong Gondola had been suspended from noon of October 1, 2008 due to the scouring
out of hillside being attacked by the Typhoon Sinlaku and Jangmi continually. The investigation and
geological prospecting had taken by TCG, and TCG will move the base of "T1-16" pillar to the better
geological location nearby. As of December 31, 2008, the Maokong Gondola System is still suspended.
In 2008 and 2007, the operating results are as follows:

Operating revenues of Makong Gondola $ 158,675 $ 97,764
Operating costs of Maokong Gondola ( 180,506) ( 97,635)
Gross (loss) profit ($ 21,831) $ 129
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F. Taipei Arena Mandatory Management Contact

TCG entered into a management contract with the Company and appointed the Company to operate
the Taipei Arena on September 1, 2008.

In accordance with the contract, the Company should provide TCG with the financial statements for
Taipei Arena operations within six months after the end of a fiscal year. The current year's earnings, if
any, shall first be offset against prior year's operating losses and then 20% of the remaining amount shall
be set aside as the Company's performance bonus for management efficiency. The remaining amount
shall be returned to TCG. Losses, if any, shall be reimbursed to the Company by the TCG. In 2008, the

operating results are as follows:

Operating revenues of Taipei Arena $ 84,589
Operating costs of Taipei Arena ( 72,451)
Gross profit $ 12,138

19. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

1) As of December 31, 2008, the unused balance of the Company's letters of credit for the purchase
of raw materials and fixed assets was $694.

2) For operating lease agreements, please refer to Note 18.2) .A.

20. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

1) Fair value of the financial instruments

December 31, 2008

Fair value

Quotations in an Estimated using a
active market valuation technique

Book value

Non-derivative financial instruments

Assets
Financial assets with fair values
equal to book values $ LA $ ) $ LRSS
Available-for-sale financial assets 2,653,360 2,653,360 -
Held-to-maturity financial assets 1,908,306 - 1,908,306
Liabilities
Financial liabilities with fair values 1,591,327 ) 1,591,327

equal to book values

December 31, 2007

Fair value

Quotations in an Estimated using a
active market valuation technique

Book value

Non-derivative financial instruments

Assets
Financial assets with fair values
equal to book values $ LY $ ) $ LD
Available-for-sale financial assets 2,383,495 2,383,495 -
Held-to-maturity financial assets 1,858,839 - 1,858,839
Liabilities
Financial liabilities with fair values 1,505,122 ) 1,505,122

equal to book values

The methods and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of the above financial instruments are
summarized below:

1. For short-term instruments, the fair values were determined based on their carrying values because of
the short maturities of the instruments. This method was applied to cash, receivables, other receivables,
accounts payable, income tax payable, accrued expenses, other payables, and receipts under custody.
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2. Available-for-sale financial assets are regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. If the
market for a financial instrument is not active, an entity establishes fair value using a valuation technique.

3. Held-to-maturity financial assets are regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis. If the
market for a financial instrument is not active, an entity establishes fair value using a valuation technique.

2) Procedure of financial risk control and hedge

The Company adopts overall risk management and control system to identify and measure a variety of
financial risks (including market risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk). The Company's
management can control and measure these risks effectively.

To control the risk management objectives of a variety of market risks effectively, the Company's management
considers the economic environment, competition and market value risk to achieve the best position of
investment risk, maintain investment of excess liquidity and control of overall market risk.

To meet its risk management objectives, the Company adopts the following strategy to control financial risk:
Credit risk

The Company has a stringent credit policy in place. Transactions are conducted only with counterparties with
good credit conditions. Appropriate measures are also undertaken where necessary to protect the Company's
credit rights and thereby mitigate credit risk.

3) Information of material financial risk
A. Market risk

(1) Foreign exchange risk

Major revenues and costs of the Company are conducted in New Taiwan dollars, thus there is not
foreign exchange risk.

(2) Interest risk

The Company invests in fixed interest rate bonds. The objective is to earn the interest revenue when
the rate changes. Therefore, there is no cash flow risk in the holding period, but there is a fair value risk.
The Company's held-to-maturity financial assets as of December 31, 2008 amounted $1,908,306.

(3) Price risk
The Company is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by the Company
and classified on the balance sheet either as available-for-sale or at fair value through profit or loss. The
Company sets limits to control the transaction volume and stop-loss amount of derivatives to reduce its
market risk.

B. Credit risk
(1) The Company has lower significant concentrations of credit risk, due to investment in government

bonds. The maximum loss to the Company is the total book value.

(2) The Company has lower significant concentrations of credit risk due to investment in company and
financial bonds, whose credit ratings are good. The maximum loss to the Company is the total amount
of all book value.

(3) The Company has lower significant concentrations of credit risk. Transactions are conducted only with
counterparties with good credit conditions. The maximum loss to the Company is the total amount of
the book value of receivables.

C. Liquidity risk

The Company invests in available-for-sale financial assets which are traded in active markets and can be
readily converted into certain amount of cash approximate to their fair values. The liquidity risk exposure
is low. The Company's long-term equity investments accounted for under the equity method are not traded
in active markets. The liquidity exposure is high, but the amount is not material to the financial statements.

D. Interest-bearing cash flow risk

As the Company has no interest-bearing transactions, there are no concentrations of interest-bearing cash
flow risk.
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BRI L BERE A K i

1. R T] 2007 FEZRE » #2008 T 7 B 24 HiEEerE =Bt E (U TNEEESR) =

ETSETHAESEERAR » BRERMFBRITGMAT

I G
BEEBER
BE
MENERE $ 6,257,855  $ 6,257,855
EE RSB REIGR 1,461,822 12 1,461,894
BEEEE 5,809,027 ( 336,428) 5,472,599 1
W EE 213,235 213,235
HinEE 28,622 - 28,622
BERE $ 13,770,621 ($ 336,416) 13,434,205
BfE
Jﬁiﬂ%fé $ 2,259,101  ($ 291,565) 1,967,536 152
HAE(E 116,699 116,699
ﬁﬂ%% 289,809 - 289,809
BE55 2,665,609  ( 291,565) 2374,044
e 11,105,012 44,851) 11,060,161 2
BEREEREmMRET $ 13,770,621  (§ 336,416) 13,434,205
I AELTE
1Bk
= $ 10,393,459  $ 10,393,459
EEMA ( 7,735,352) 801 7,734,551)
=EERN 2,658,107 801 2,658,908
SXBEH ( 2,071976) 810) 2,072,777)
=527 586,131 586,131
=ENTA R 335,580 52,241 283,339 2
SENBRARIER ( 12,927) - 12,927)
AU 908,784  ( 52,241) 856,543
FrSRER 142,946) 7,390 135,556) 3
ZHAft A $ 765,838  (§ 44,851) 720,987

EFEEEREARSE $1,000 ¢+ BIZRNICAERER -

2. FHEETERN -

(1) BETEE [BERERER G DREBEEKFEERIIN 2008 FEEBRELESHBREE 2% - BRHEE
B TE R BRI & TEMENFL $336,428 ©

(2) BEtRIKIEEI IC FEZBBSEFSTEELNAS » REESEN (BHE) FEEEN (2007/12/4 ~
2010/12/31) STEBITHESIE » I6EEESZIBIUA » BGEAEE TSN | K2 THIBIUA | $52,241 °

(3) 1S 1 ~ 2 EARREMEEIMENRBESTEEI Bt EAEER - LESIFRATHIZE $52,241 » 6]
TEEIEEEE [FE(UTRFR] $7,378 ~ [FTEMEBR $7,3900 & [EE ~ REBGERERG $12 -
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4) Financial statement presentation

The accounts for the year ended December 31, 2007 were examined by TMAD of the Ministry of Audit

on July

24, 2008. Certain accounts in the 2007 financial statements were restated to conform with the

adjustments made by TMAD.

Balance per
Adjustments examination by
TMAD

Balance per audited

financial statements

Balance Sheets

Assets
Current assets $ 6,257,855 $ - 3 6,257,855
Fund, investments and long-term receivables 1,461,822 12 1,461,894
Fixed assets 5,809,027 (  336,428) 5,472,599 a
Intangible assets 213,235 - 213,235
Other assets 28,622 - 28,622
Total assets $ 13,770,621 ($ 336,416) $ 13,434,205
Liabilities
Current liabilities $ 2,259,101 ($ 291,565) $ 1,967,536 a,b
Long-term liabilities 116,699 - 116,699
Other liabilities 289,809 - 289,809
Total liabilities 2,665,609 (  291,565) 2374,044
Stockholders' equity 11,105,012 ( 44,851) 11,060,161 b
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 13,770,621 (§ 336,416) $ 13,434,205

Balance per
Adjustments examination by
TMAD

Balance per audited

financial statements

Statements of Income

Operating revenue $ 10,393,459 §$ - 8 10,393,459
Operating cost ( 7,735,352) 801 ( 7,734,551)
Gross profit 2,658,107 801 2,658,908
Operating expenses ( 2,071,976) ( 801) ( 2,072,777)
Operating income 586,131 - 586,131
Non-operating income 335,580 52,241 283,339 b
Non-operating expenses ( 12,927) - 12,927)
Income before income tax 908,784 ( 52,241) 856,543
Income tax expense ( 142,946) 7,390 ( 135,556) ¢
Net income $ 765,838 ($ 44.851) $ 720,987

Note: For adjustments below $1,000, no explanation was provided.

Note a:

Note b:

Note c:

TMAD decided to decrease "Transportation equipment" and "other payables" by $336,428 due to
the expenditure budget year that should be 2008 and the transportation equipment which has not
reached acceptance phase.

TMAD considered that the Company should recognize the realized revenue from the extend
contract period (from December 4, 2007 to December 31, 2010) in accordance with the contents
of the Taipei IC Card Integration Business Agreement. As a result of the adjustments, "unearned
revenue" and "miscellaneous revenue" decreased by $52,241.

As a result of the adjustments listed above and other adjustments made by TCG and TMAD, income
before income tax, income tax payable, and income tax expense decreased by $52,241, $7,378, and
$7,390, respectively; fund, investments and long-term receivables increased by $12.
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=SB IR IREANE L Significant Statistical Data

BS{1] unit

iR KE Route Length H13E & Medium Capacity SE S High Capacity

B R Total length of MRT network 10.5 65.30
=2Z8E% Elevated Section 10.5 11.01
FEER Ground Level Section - 10.07
HTNER Underground Section - 44.22

I*E:%F'E\EE Total Length of Project

/E\;éﬁ Entire System
75.80

21.51

10.07

44.22

NE Km
NE Km
NE Km
NE Km
NE Km

BE{{7 unit

i%z\\ﬁ Entire System

U Station
I Station

U Station

1 Station

BS1] unit

3718

Model

20.52

123
284
2,222

3%

‘:E/Z]Z\\,’f;ﬁ Entire System

HIIE8 Train
EBJFH Carriage
ESJf8 Carriage

A Person

)\ Person

AR m
NEB /I N\ Km/Hr
NEB /1 )\FF Km/Hr

ﬁfﬁ Unit

EELE! Number of Stations HI5E S Medium Capacity el @y
HEESIGEN Total Number of Stations 12 58

%—QEEQ Elevated Section 12 12

“FEER Ground Level Section - 5

B Underground Section - 41
EHLE Trains
5| SSHE48 Train Model VAL 256 ai | omd | s
HIESEN Number of Trains 25 2 36 6
§U$$ﬁﬁ§i Number of Carriages per Train 4 6 6 6
EBRAEM Number of Carriages 100 132 216 36
Y ESFE(TI 2N Seats per Train 80 352 352 352
B EFHESE Passenger Capacity per Train 464 2,200 2,200 2,200
Ex AN Maximum Gradient 6% 3% 3% 3%
Hx/) \FIZRHE Minimum Curvature Radius 30 200 200 200
5 H%E Average Speed B8] 34 34 34
ER= % 51 IR Maximum Designed Speed 80 90 90 90
R Depots SE S Medium Capacity =3B & High Capacity
HERTEN Number of Depots 1 4
HERREITE Total Area 6.2 89.075

= Medium Capacity %E% High Capacity

MIEEEE2E Affiliated Enterprises

95.275
/3}_7715\\% Entire System

JEE Depot

/A\tE Hectares

BRE 5 Station Shop Spaces 153 87

B Advertising

Elﬁ),g? = Station Advertisements 158 1,377

%”_FEE% On-Board Advertisements 400 5,832
1%%% Parking Lots

HEESER(T] Motorcycle Spaces 344 7,831

7EL$$E_L Automobile Spaces 540 2,251
T Underground Malls

[SEHZXEN Number of Shop Spaces - 116

IS FHETE Total Shop Space Area - 8,729

HF1:2
2
3¢

StEIREBEE IS 2 [@FZEE&E] -
2006 T 7 B 22 BHiE - A 371 B 3 ESHEERES ST 3 DIEEHHTICE 2R AN/ 28
SIHTEE R 3 AREE °

SESIR CiRE

Note 1: Includes the two main transfer stations Taipei Main Station and Zhongxiao Fuxing Station.
Note 2: On 22 July 2006, three sets of 371 model Electrical Multiple Units consisting of three cars each began operations on the Xinbeitou and

Xiaobitan Branch Lines.
Note 3: Includes 3 stores on the Maokong Gondola system.

126

EEMREER

102

1,535

6,232

8,175

2,791

116

8,729

Z Store

I8 Piece

& Piece

1{% Unit
1% Unit

? Store
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SEEEWE Operating Statistics  cosovo2ms.izm

E5ER] Operating Duration

EFIE% Medium Capacity

=

EEE High Capacity

ES{{7 unit

FHEERH

Daily Operating Duration

S| ES;EEEEFRY Train Time Statistics

18 (6:00~24:00)

EFIE% Medium Capacity

18 (6:00~24:00)

=& S High Capacity

1)\I5

{S5rERIG

Station Stop Duration

ES[1TEE
One-Way Trip Duration

LT
Round Trip Duration

IifiRa TR

Turnaround Time

5EE Ridership

17~45 ) sec

2049 min

4073 min

70 *’J) sec

l:l:ltii% Medium Capacity

=1 tﬁﬁﬁ Taipei Main Station

EZ e mih Zhongxiao Fuxing Station
HEREIA Other Stations

337K FHIE Danshui-Xindian

615 FEEAA Beitou —Nanshijiao
@/%-7?\’;—:; Nangang—Yongnig

B tnER T Nangang - Far Eastern
Hospital

337K FHTE Danshui-Xindian

6% EBIEAA Beitou - Nanshijiao
@/%-7?\/;—_7; Nangang—Yongnig
ﬁlﬁ-ﬁﬁglﬁ Nangang — Far Eastern
Hospital

210-4807) sec

EE% High Capacity

40-507) 40-50 sec
40-507) 40-50 sec
18~35%) 18~35 sec

544323F) 54 min 23 sec
359307%) 35 min 07 sec
417304%) 41 min 04 sec
365202%) 36 min 02 sec

11073°03%) 110min03 sec
690337 69min33 sec
817334F) 81min34 sec
7053507 70min50 sec

%;{t\\ﬁt}f Entire System

BES{17 unit

FERES

Annual Ridership
BHHIEE

Average Daily Ridership
TEESETIEE
Average Weekday Ridership
PIREEEIES

Average Weekend and Holiday Ridership

35,352,661

96,592

108,916

69,693

414,671,754

1,132,983

1,188,606

1,011,579

450,024,415

1,229,575

1,297,522

1,081,272

AR Trip
A Trip
AR Trip
AR Trip

SRR Train Usage .| |

DIEHRTRRIIN

Total Number of Train Runs
TIEEYER

Average Daily Runs

FRIEEENE

Total Train Kilometers

172,845

474

1,847,617

660,053
(Iﬁ??h’%% Main Line Transits 421,788 )

1,803
(ZEHF1THP Main Line Transits 1,152)

10,255,754

832,898

2,277

12,103,371

ﬂi Run
{UJ—E Run

HEES/NER Train-Km

ol 128 Sl Gt |

FHIRIED ST

Average Peak Headway

FIIREIED BT

Average Off-Peak Headway

fJERR

Train Speed

HEERE

On-Time Rate

RETIIE@E

Average Loading Rate During Peak Hours
—AREE IR

Minor Incidents

EAFHE

Major Incidents

MRIEARE

Total Passenger Kilometers

23500
2 min 50 sec
4351
4 min 51 sec

30.91
99.88%
4.27
0.00
0.00

150,124,161

47336%)
4 min 36 sec
533980
5 min 39 sec

34.04
99.91%
4.08
0.10
0.00

3,432,219,739

3,582,343,900

N=EVAN S

Km/Hr

UNEDRVNN
Person/m2

EA=T=-VN-=S]
Incident/Million Km
BYI=1=YN=2]
Incident/Million Km
IEARE

Passenger-Km

SOOI | |

IRE (Fig)
Average Ticket Price (After-tax)
IIRREE

Average Trip Length
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